
THE QUARRY 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 20, 2021

Conference Call In: 646-838-1601
Conference ID: 951 092 195#

Agenda Page #1



The Quarry Community Development District 
Inframark, Infrastructure Management Services 

210 North University Drive Suite 702, Coral Springs, Florida 33071 
Telephone: 954-603-0033; Fax: 954-345-1292 

September 13, 2021 

Board of Supervisors  
The Quarry Community Development District 

Dear Board Members: 

A regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Quarry Community Development District will be 
held on Monday September 20, 2021 at 1:00 PM.  The meeting will be held at the Quarry Beach Club, 
8975 Kayak Drive, Naples, FL.    The following is the agenda for the meeting: 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Public Comments on Agenda Items

5. Engineer’s Report

A. Engineer’s Written Report

B. CPH Pilot Project Recommendation Sites

C. CPH Pilot Project Proposal

D. Lake Bank Erosion Project Scheduling Discussion/FEMA Funding

6. District Manager’s Report

A. Approval of the August 16, 2021 Minutes

B. Acceptance of the Financial Report, and Approval of the Check Register and Invoices

of August 2021

C. Follow-up Items

i. Status of Resident Complaints

ii. Variance Easement Report Update

a. 9051 Breakwater Drive

b. 9075 Graphite Circle

D. Field Management Report

7. Attorney’s Report

A. Attorney’s Written Report

Agenda Page #2



The Quarry CDD 
September 13, 2021 
Page 2  

-2-

B. Consideration of Resolution 2021-10, The Quarry CDD Approving a Land Swap with the

Quarry Community Association

8. Old Business Items

9. New Business Items

10. Supervisor Requests

A. Reports

i. Chairman’s Report:  Mr. Omland

ii. Lake & Preserve: Mr. Flister

iii. Illinois Pondweed Lake Survey:  Mr. Schliep

iv. Heritage Bay Umbrella Association Update:  Mr. Cantwell

11. Audience Comments

12. Adjournment

The next scheduled meeting:  Monday October 18, 2021 

All other supporting documents for agenda items are enclosed or will be distributed separately.  The 
balance of the agenda is routine in nature and staff will present their reports at the meeting.  I look  
forward to seeing you at the meeting and in the meantime, if you have any questions, please contact me at 
(239)785-0675.

Sincerely, 
Justin Faircloth 
Justin Faircloth 
District Manager 
cc: Jere Earlywine Jeffrey Satfield Wes Haber Albert Lopez 

Agenda Page #3



Fifth Order of Business 

Agenda Page #4



5A

Agenda Page #5



The Quarry CDD – Engineer’s Report 
September 2021 

August 2021 Action Items 

 Seaweed harvester collection slope modification topographic survey scheduled.

 October water quality monitoring event scheduled.

 Pilot lakes shoreline project proposal submitted for Board of Supervisor’s consideration.

 9051 Breakwater Drive site observation completed on August 20th, 2021 and observations
report was submitted with this agenda packet.

Pending Contracts/Proposals 

 Pilot lakes shoreline project proposal.

Current Projects 

 Seaweed harvester lake bank slope modification
o Under design.

2216 Altamont Avenue 
Fort Myers, Florida 33901 

Phone: 239.332.5499 
Fax: 239.332.2955 
www.cphcorp.com 

Agenda Page #6



5B 

Agenda Page #7



L 30

L 55

L 46

L 50

L 41

L 42

L 44

L 45

#9

#13

#12

#11 #10

L 54

L 48

SLATE CT

QUARRY DR

Q
U

AR
R

Y 
D

R
IV

E

COPPER ROCK CT

COPPER CANYON CT

CO
BALT CO

VE CIR

N
IC

KE
L 

R
ID

G
E 

C
IR

IR
O

N
ST

O
N

E 
TE

R

M
AR

BL
E 

ST
O

N
E 

D
R

IV
E

GRANITE CT

QUARRY DR
C

O
Q

U
IN

A 
C

IR

FIELDSTONE LANE
C

O
LL

IE
R

 C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
W

C
O

LL
IE

R
 C

O
U

N
TY

 R
O

W

IR
O

N
ST

O
N

E 
TE

R

M
AR

BL
E 

ST
O

N
E 

D
R

IV
E

QUARRY DR

FIELDSTONE LN.

OPTION 2 (368')

OPTION  1

OPTION  1

OPTION 2 (350')

OPTION 2 (850')

OPTION  1(25')

OPTION  1(25')

OPTION  1(25')

OPTION  1(25')

OPTION  1(25')

OPTION  1(25')

OPTION  1(50')

OPTION  1(385')

OPTION  1(45')

OPTION 2 (75')

OPTION 2 (140')

OPTION 2 (60')

OPTION 2 (415')

OPTION  1(395')

OPTION  2(260')OPTION  2(265')

OPTION  2(365')

OPTION  1(35')OPTION  1(35') OPTION  1(45')OPTION  1(290')OPTION  1(237')

OPTION 2 (435')

OPTION 2 (288')

OPTION  1(240')

OPTION 2 (530')

OPTION 2 (250')

OPTION 2 (50')

OPTION  1(40')

OPTION  1(30')

OPTION 2 (45')

OPTION 2 (75')

Job No.
Date:
Checked by:

Designed by:
Drawn by:

Sheet No.No. DateNo. Date Revision Revision

www.cphcorp.com

A Full Service A & E Firm

C  2021

THIS SHEET NOT VALID FOR CONSTRUCTION WITHOUT COMPLETE SET OF PLANS.

8

7

6

51

2

3

4 EX-1 INITIAL REPAIRS
PROGRAMMING EXHIBIT

THE QUARRY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

COLLIER COUNTY / FLORIDA

A. LOPEZ
J. ALLEN
A. LOPEZ
08/03/2021
Q0509

CPH, Inc.
Plans Prepared By:

State of Florida Licenses:
Engineer No. 3215

Surveyor No. LB7143
Architect. No. AA26000926
Landscape No. LC000298

2216 Altamont Avenue
Ft. Myers, FL 33901
Ph: 239.332.5499

N
C

O
LL

IE
R

 B
LV

D
.

LEGEND
LAKE NUMBER

APPROX. LAKE LIMITS

GOLF COURSE HOLE #

PRIORITY #1

PRIORITY #2

L ##

#

Agenda Page #8

alopez
Rectangle

alopez
Polygon

alopez
Rectangle

alopez
Typewriter
PROPOSED PILOT TESTING SITES



L 30B

L 31

L 63B

#2

#1

L 40

L 30

L 63

Q
U

AR
R

Y 
D

R

IMMOKALEE ROAD

Q
UARRY DRIVE

H
ID

EA
W

Y 
H

AR
BO

R
 C

T

SIESTA BAY DR

SPINNER

QUARRY DR

C
O

VE LN

COASTLINE COURT

SI
ES

TA
 B

AY
 D

R

QCDD HBCDD

N
AU

TI
C

AL
 L

AN
D

IN
G

 C
IR

QCDD HBCDD

OPTION 2 (260')

OPTION  1 (573')

OPTION  1 (91')

OPTION  1 (295')

OPTION  1 (129')

OPTION  1
(238')

OPTION 2 (60')

OPTION 2 (420')

OPTION  1
(179')

OPTION  1 (235')

OPTION  1 (55')

OPTION  1 (110')

Job No.
Date:
Checked by:

Designed by:
Drawn by:

Sheet No.No. DateNo. Date Revision Revision

www.cphcorp.com

A Full Service A & E Firm

C  2021

THIS SHEET NOT VALID FOR CONSTRUCTION WITHOUT COMPLETE SET OF PLANS.

8

7

6

51

2

3

4 EX-4 INITIAL REPAIRS
PROGRAMMING EXHIBIT

THE QUARRY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

COLLIER COUNTY / FLORIDA

A. LOPEZ
J. ALLEN
A. LOPEZ
08/03/2021
Q0509

CPH, Inc.
Plans Prepared By:

State of Florida Licenses:
Engineer No. 3215

Surveyor No. LB7143
Architect. No. AA26000926
Landscape No. LC000298

2216 Altamont Avenue
Ft. Myers, FL 33901
Ph: 239.332.5499

N

LEGEND
LAKE NUMBER

APPROX. LAKE LIMITS

GOLF COURSE HOLE #

PRIORITY #1

PRIORITY #2

L ##

#

Agenda Page #9

alopez
Polygon

alopez
Rectangle

alopez
Typewriter
PROPOSED PILOT TESTING SITES



5C 

Agenda Page #10



 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
BETWEEN 
CPH, INC. 

AND  
THE QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FOR 
THE QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

PILOT LAKES SHORELINE PROJECT 
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
SEPTEMBER 2ND, 2021 

 
CPH, Inc. (CPH) has prepared a proposal of services and fees to provide certain professional consultant 
services for the above referenced project. CPH, Inc., hereinafter known as CPH or CONSULTANT, 
proposes to furnish The Quarry Community Development District, hereinafter known as the Client, the 
professional services described below for the fees stipulated herein. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
CPH will provide schematic design and construction observation services to address approximately 850 LF 
of erosion deficiencies on various lakes throughout The Quarry CDD, to be identified as littoral restoration 
test sites.  CPH will provide limited construction observation services for a period of time not to exceed one 
hundred and forty-four (144) total hours. These construction observation services will include the 850 LF 
mentioned above, as well as an additional 350 LF as shown on the Glase Golf, Inc Lake #47 Improvements  
proposal dated May 17, 2021, for a total of 1,200 LF of construction observation services. As part of this 
proposal, CPH is including a Littoral Restoration Monitoring & Reporting task to periodically evaluate the 
littoral planting progress. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
CONSULTANT 
 
1.0 SCHEMATIC CIVIL DESIGN 
 
Based on the previously discussed Lake Bank Repairs Initial Programing Report Memo, CPH will prepare 
the Schematic Civil Design Exhibits. The exhibits will include general geometry data for each lake and 
various construction details to direct GC on the limits of construction and the specific planting pattern and 
materials. CPH will also include a unit cost form template for bidding purposes. Plans will be prepared in 
accordance with the South Florida Water Management Department (SFWMD).  Plans will be supplied to 
the CLIENT in reproducible form at a suitable scale to fit on a twenty-four inch by thirty-six inch (24” x 36”) 
plan sheet and will be accurate and legible. The plans and data will be reviewed with the CLIENT, prior to 
submitting for Construction 
 
 

Agenda Page #11



 
Proposal to The Quarry Community Development District 
 
Pilot Lakes Shoreline Project 
September 2nd, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 

 

  

 
 
 
2.0 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION  
 

CPH proposes to provide the following services for the anticipated construction period of six (6) weeks:  
CPH will provide on-site inspection services totaling 120 hours of construction inspector time and 24 
hours of Senior Project Manager time. These hours will be allocated at the QCDD Board of Supervisors 
discretion. CPH suggests the following hours allocation: 

 
 Construction Inspector: 

First two weeks:  40 hrs. per week 
Last 4 weeks:  20 hrs. per week 

 Sr. Project Manager: 
6 Weeks:  4 hrs. per week 
 

- CPH will attend one (1) pre-construction meeting 
 

- CPH will prepare and distribute to the QCDD a weekly summary report of activities, critical issues, 
and photo documentation of the services conducted over the previous week. 

 
- CPH will monitor the construction schedule and review pay applications. 

 
- CPH will provide general coordination and administrative services as need to support the scope 

herein.   
 

Upon completion of all construction activities, CPH shall provide a final inspection, develop a    
contractor punch list, and review the cross sections as-built survey documents (provided by others).  
Upon satisfactory completion of all work, CPH shall provide a letter of substantial compliance. 
 

3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 
 
ENV-1  Littoral Restoration Monitoring & Reporting 
CPH shall implement a littoral restoration monitoring plan. The monitoring program shall include a Baseline 
Event and a 10-month Event to document the existing conditions (planting survival and natural recruitment).  
It is recommended that monitoring last up to 36 months from the baseline monitoring event. The proposed 
methodology will allow a statistical comparison between planting areas and species. The results will 
determine the most efficient and likely to succeed littoral planting program to prevent erosion along the 
shorelines.  
 
Baseline Monitoring Event  
The Baseline Event shall occur one week after plant installation. 

 Establish permanent photographic stations utilizing a hand-held GPS. Photos shall be taken of the 
planting zone to document the overall setting and condition of the littoral restoration area. CPH 
estimates up to 12 photo stations (1 station for every 100 linear feet of shoreline). 

Agenda Page #12



 
Proposal to The Quarry Community Development District 
 
Pilot Lakes Shoreline Project 
September 2nd, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 

 

  

 Establish permanent quadrats (1m2) in the planting zones using a randomizer to select each 
location. The (10) quadrats are estimated for planting zone (100 linear feet of shoreline) for a total  
 
of one hundred and twenty (120) quadrats. Each quadrat shall be utilized in a plot density analysis 
to determine density and species diversity. Stem counts shall be utilized to record density of each 
species for overall percent cover and density. 

 Deviations from the planting plan will be identified and noted, if required 

 Overall health, vigor, plant height, recruitment, nuisance and opportunistic species will also be 
noted. 

10-Month Monitoring Event 
The 10-month Monitoring Event shall occur 10 months after the Baseline Monitoring Event.  

 Photos shall be taken from the permanent stations established at the Baseline Monitoring Event.  

 Stem counts will be conducted at each quadrat established at the Baseline Monitoring Event. 

 Overall health, vigor, plant height, recruitment, nuisance and opportunistic species and erosional 
issues will also be noted. 

Monitoring Report  
CPH shall prepare a monitoring report to include the data collected from the Baseline Monitoring Event and 
the 10- Month Monitoring Event. The monitoring report shall include: 

 A narrative of the project purpose and objectives 
 Monitoring methodology  
 Photographs  
 Vegetative Data 
 Exhibits and Figures 
 Estimations of plant density of installed plants and naturally recruited plants 
 Identification of problematic situations 
 Comparative assessment of the different planting specifications 
 Recommendations for future site selection and littoral restoration projects  

 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF OTHERS 
 

 The Client shall guarantee access to and make provisions for CPH to enter public or private lands 
as required by CPH to perform their work under this Agreement. 

 It is understood that CPH, Inc. will perform services under the sole direction of the Client or his 
designated representative.  In the performance of these services, CPH will coordinate its efforts 
with those of other project team members and consultants as required.  The Client shall provide 
CPH with all project related information available, including the existing land plan, property legal 
description, title work, boundary and topographic surveys, geotechnical investigation reports, etc. 
CPH will rely upon the accuracy and completeness of all Client furnished information in 
connection with the performance of services under this agreement. 

 Plant procurement and installation.   
 

 

Agenda Page #13



 
Proposal to The Quarry Community Development District 
 
Pilot Lakes Shoreline Project 
September 2nd, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
4.0 SERVICES NOT INCLUDED 
 
The following services are not anticipated and, therefore, not included in this Agreement at this time: 
 

 Environmental studies and coordination of environmental issues with the regulatory agencies 
 Wetlands Permitting  
 Wildlife Assessments and Permitting 
 Review of an alternative product in lieu of the product called for on the plans and specifications 
 Services resulting from changes made by client following the completion of specific project tasks 

that require re-work by CPH 
 Special meetings with agencies, other consultants or Client not normally required to perform the 

work described in the Scope of Services, except those meetings specifically identified in the above 
Scope of Work 

 Phase II and remediation 
 Any other issues not specifically described in this proposal 

 
Should work be required in any of these areas, or areas not previously described, CPH will prepare a 
proposal or amendment, at the CLIENT’s request, that contains the Scope of Services, fee, and schedule 
required to complete the additional work item. 
 
COMPENSATION 
 
Labor 
CPH will perform the Scope of Services contained in this Agreement as identified on each task, either lump 
sum or time and materials.  Refer to the Standard Hourly Rate Schedule to be utilized on this project.  The 
following is the breakdown of fees for each task.  Tasks that are identified as Time and Materials (Hourly) 
have been provided an ‘Upset Limit’ (USL) budget.  The CLIENT will be informed if the Hourly fees listed 
herein are anticipated to exceed the amount listed below.   
 
Phase No. Phase Description Billing Method Fee 
A. CONSULTANT 

 
1.0 Schematic Civil Design Lump Sum $6,150.00 
2.0 Construction Administration Hourly USL $20,160.00 
3.0 Environmental Services Lump Sum $19,850.00 
TOTAL   $46,160.00   

 
Reimbursable Expenses 
In addition to the labor compensation outlined above, CPH shall be reimbursed directly for project specific 
expenditures such as, but not limited to, printing and reprographics, meals, postage, and telephone usage.  
Reimbursable expenses will be billed at their actual cost, without increase.  

Agenda Page #14



Agenda Page #15



5D 

Agenda Page #16



09.09.21 STO

POTENTIAL SCHEDULING OF FEMA FUNDED SHORELINE PROJECTS OVER COMING YEARS
  

ASSUMPTIONS:

1.  ASSUMES THAT $2,000,000 OF ANTICIPATED WORK CAN OCCUR IN TWO PROJECTS OVER TWO DRY WEATHER SEASONS.

2.  THIS ALSO ASSUMES THE GOLF CLUB CAN SHUT DOWN FOR WORK ON THEIR LAKES IN ORDER TO BE COMPLETED IN 2 YEARS

3.  PROJECT MAY NOT BE ABLE TO BE COMPLETED IN 2 YEARS AND MAY NEED 3 OR MORE YEARS

4.  WORK IS WEATHER AND WATER LEVEL DEPENDENT AND ASSUMES THAT DURATION WILL OCCUR IN Q2 OF EACH YEAR

_2021 _2022 _2023 _2024 _2025

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2Q3Q Q4 Q1 Q2Q3Q Q4

OPTION 1  

PILOT PROJECT 1A OF $150-200K BIDS

BID AND AWARD

CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT 1B OF $1MM+/-

BID AND AWARD

CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT 1C OF $1MM +/-

BID AND AWARD

CONSTRUCTION 

OPTION 2:  PILOT PROJECT 1A AFTER 10 MONTHS OF MONITORING, DID NOT WORK, RETHINK  APPROACH

NEW PILOT PROJECT 2A OF $150-200K BIDS

BID AND AWARD

CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT 2B OF $1MM+/-

BID AND AWARD

CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT 2C OF $1MM +/-

BID AND AWARD

CONSTRUCTION 

OPTION 3:  ABANDON PILOT PROJECT AND BUILD ENTIRE PROJECT OVER TWO YEARS (OPTOMISTIC)

PROJECT 3A OF $1MM+/-

BID AND AWARD

CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT 3B OF $1MM +/-

BID AND AWARD

CONSTRUCTION 

Agenda Page #17



Sixth Order of Business 

Agenda Page #18



6A 

Agenda Page #19



1 

MINUTES OF MEETING 1 
THE QUARRY 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 
4 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Quarry Community 5 

Development District was held Monday August 16, 2021 at 1:00 p.m. at the 6 

Quarry Beach Club, 8975 Kayak Drive, Naples, FL. 7 

8 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 9 

10 

Stanley T. Omland  Chairman 11 

Lloyd Schliep Vice-Chairman 12 

Timothy B. Cantwell Assistant Secretary 13 

William Flister Assistant Secretary 14 

Dean Britt  Assistant Secretary 15 

16 

Also present were: 17 

Justin Faircloth District Manager 18 

Wes Haber (via phone) District Counsel 19 

Albert Lopez District Engineer 20 

Aaron Moore CPH 21 

Scott Garvin  Quarry Community Association 22 

Jeremey Jardin Collier Environmental Services  23 

Jose “Concho” Escobedo Collier Environmental Services 24 

Various residents 25 

26 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the 27 

August 16, 2021 Meeting of The Quarry Community Development District’s Board 28 

of Supervisors.  29 

30 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order 31 

• Mr. Omland called the meeting to order and Mr. Faircloth called the roll,32 

and a quorum was established.33 

34 

Agenda Page #20



August 16, 2021     The Quarry CDD 

Unapproved minutes 2 

35 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Pledge Allegiance 36 

• The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.37 

38 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Agenda 39 

• The Chair requested item 10A The Quarry CDD/Quarry Community40 

Association Land Swap be moved up before item seven, the engineer’s41 

report.42 

• Mr. Faircloth indicated a number of items had been emailed out to the Board43 

prior to the meeting and hardcopies provided.44 

• Mr. Faircloth noted that Ms. Parker of the Quarry Community Association45 

indicated prior to the meeting that the resident at 9051 Breakwater Drive had46 

proceeded and constructed items around their home in the Districts’47 

easement without obtaining permission.  This item will be discussed under48 

the Variance Easement Report update.49 

50 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Britt with 51 

all in favor the agenda was approved as amended. 5-0 52 

53 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments on Agenda Items 54 

• No public comments were received on agenda items.55 

56 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing to Consider the 57 

Adoption of the Budget for Fiscal 58 

Year 2022 59 

A. Public Comments60 

61 

On MOTION by Mr. Cantwell seconded by Mr. Schliep 62 

with all in favor the public hearing to adopt the Fiscal 63 

Year 2022 budget was opened. 5-0 64 

Agenda Page #21



August 16, 2021     The Quarry CDD 

Unapproved minutes 3 

65 

• No public comments were received.66 

• Mr. Faircloth mentioned to the Board he received several inquiries about the67 

letter which was sent out regarding the public hearing and believes all68 

questions had been addressed.69 

70 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Britt with 71 

all in favor the public hearing to adopt the Fiscal Year 72 

2022 budget was closed. 5-0 73 

74 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2021-08 Adoption of the Fiscal Year 202275 

Budget76 

• Discussion was had regarding the Fiscal Year 2022 budget.77 

78 

On MOTION by Mr. Cantwell seconded by Mr. Flister 79 

with all in favor Resolution 2021-08, the Fiscal Year 80 

2022 budget was adopted. 5-0 81 

82 

83 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing to Consider the 84 

Levy of Operations and 85 

Maintenance Assessment for Fiscal 86 

Year 2022 87 

A. Public Comments88 

89 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Britt with 90 

all in favor the public hearing to consider the levy of 91 

operations and maintenance assessment for Fiscal Year 92 

2022 was opened. 5-0 93 

94 

• No public comments were received.95 

Agenda Page #22



August 16, 2021     The Quarry CDD 

Unapproved minutes 4 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Britt with 96 

all in favor the public hearing to consider the levy of 97 

operations and maintenance assessment for Fiscal Year 98 

2022 was closed. 5-0 99 

100 

B. Adoption of the 2021 Operations and Maintenance Assessment101 

Methodology102 

103 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Flister 104 

with all in favor the 2021 Operations and Maintenance 105 

Assessment Methodology was approved as presented. 5-0 106 

107 

C. Consideration of Resolution 2021-09, Levying the Assessments108 

109 

On MOTION by Mr. Cantwell seconded by Mr. Flister 110 

with all in favor Resolution 2021-09, Levying the 111 

Assessments was adopted. 5-0 112 

113 

114 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Old Business Items 115 

A. The Quarry CDD/Quarry Community Association Land Swap116 

Discussion117 

• Discussion ensued regarding the Quarry CDD and Quarry Community118 

Association land swap.119 

120 

On MOTION by Mr. Cantwell seconded by Mr. Schliep 121 

with all in favor approving the swap of properties as 122 

presented and authorizing the Chairman to deal with the 123 

administrative details provided as there is nothing grossly 124 

different than what was presented to the Board was 125 

approved. 5-0 126 

127 

128 

129 

130 

Agenda Page #23



August 16, 2021     The Quarry CDD 

Unapproved minutes 5 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Engineer’s Report 131 

A. Engineer’s Written Report132 

• Mr. Lopez presented his written report to the Board.133 

134 

B. CPH QE Phase II & III Shoreline Repairs Warranty Memo135 

• Mr. Lopez mentioned this item had previously been discussed at the last136 

meeting.137 

C. CPH Seaweed Collection Ramp Design Proposal138 

139 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Flister 140 

with all in favor the CPH proposal in the amount of 141 

$11,720 to design a seaweed collection ramp on Lake 30 142 

subject to review by the District Attorney was approved. 143 

5-0144 

145 

D. CPH Water Quality Testing Proposals146 

i. CPH Five Basin Proposal147 

• The Board reviewed the water quality proposals presented by CPH and148 

discussed both options.149 

150 

ii. CPH Twenty-Eight Lakes Proposal151 

152 

On MOTION by Mr. Cantwell seconded by Mr. Britt 153 

with all in favor the CPH proposal in the amount of 154 

$29,900 to complete water quality monitoring on 28 155 

Lakes in October 2021 and April 2022 was approved. 5-0 156 

157 

• The Board requested CPH work with the Quarry Golf Club, The QCA,158 

and Heritage Bay to see if there are any efficiencies which can be159 

achieved to minimize costs as each entity is presently completing various160 

testing.161 

• Mr. Cantwell requested a combined effort be undertaken with the entities162 

involved to see what cost sharing could be achieved.163 

Agenda Page #24



August 16, 2021     The Quarry CDD 

Unapproved minutes 6 

• Mr. Faircloth indicated the proposal needed to be with the Quarry CDD164 

and not Inframark, therefore CPH will revise the proposal.165 

E. CPH Preserve Inspection Report166 

• Discussion ensued regarding the CPH preserve inspection report.167 

168 

F. CPH Lake Repair Programming Report169 

• An extensive discussion was had regarding the CPH lake repair170 

programming report.171 

o Mr. Faircloth indicated the importance to consider drainage when any172 

restoration efforts are being pursued and possibly the need to develop173 

stormwater rules for the District.174 

o Mr. Omland requested CPH consider drainage modification in their175 

designs.176 

o Mr. Omland noted the drainage policies regarding privately created177 

erosion needed to make it into the CDD101 book and then178 

communicated to the QCA.179 

180 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Cantwell 181 

with all in favor the Board requested Mr. Haber approach 182 

bond counsel regarding stipulations on the use of FEMA 183 

funds for capital projects was approved. 5-0 184 

185 

o The Board requested CPH come back to the Board with a pilot project186 

approach for two projects based on the estimation of $75,000 per187 

project.188 

189 

190 

191 

192 

Agenda Page #25



August 16, 2021     The Quarry CDD 

Unapproved minutes 7 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS District Manager’s Report 193 

A. Approval of the June 21, 2021 Minutes194 

• Minor changes were made to lines 56, 114, and 119. The requested changes195 

will be part of the final record.196 

197 

On MOTION by Mr. Cantwell seconded by Mr. Britt 198 

with all in favor the minutes of the June 21, 2021 199 

meeting were approved as amended. 5-0 200 

201 

• The Chairman requested the draft minutes be provided to him for review.202 

B. Acceptance of the Financial Report, and Approval of the Check203 

Register and Invoices of July 2021204 

• Mr. Faircloth indicated the Tax Collector pulled back funds from Fiscal205 

Year 2020 and there is a discrepancy on the remaining funds which206 

Inframark is attempting to resolve with the Tax Collector’s office.207 

208 

On MOTION by Mr. Britt seconded by Mr. Flister with 209 

all in favor the July financial report was accepted, and the 210 

check register and invoices of July 2021 were approved. 211 

5-0212 

213 

C. Discussion of the FY2022 Meeting Schedule214 

215 

On MOTION by Mr. Cantwell seconded by Mr. Britt 216 

with all in favor the Fiscal Year 2022 meeting schedule 217 

was approved as presented. 5-0 218 

219 

D. Follow-up Items220 

i. Status of Resident Complaints221 

• Lake Bank Weeds222 

• The Board was provided with updates on the lake bank weeds. Mr. Faircloth223 

noted per the contract it is the responsibility of Collier Environmental224 

Services to treat the lake bank weeds.225 

• Peter Oliver Pontoon Issues – 9383 Slate Court226 

Agenda Page #26



August 16, 2021     The Quarry CDD 

Unapproved minutes 8 

• Mr. Faircloth noted that communication was received from Mr. Oliver227 

regarding the damage to his pontoon boat, and this information was turned228 

over to Collier Environmental Services as it was determined this was not a229 

CDD issue.230 

ii. Variance Easement Report Update231 

• 9237 Gypsum Way232 

233 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Cantwell 234 

with all in favor the variance easement request for 9237 235 

Gypsum Way was approved. 5-0 236 

237 

• The Board discussed the issue with 9051 Breakwater Drive regarding the238 

installation of items within the District’s easement without approval.  The239 

Board requested CPH review the situation and the application information240 

be included in the September agenda packet for further discussion.241 

iii. MRI Stormwater System Inspection Report242 

• The Board revised the previously approved motion presented at the June 21,243 

2021 meeting with a not to exceed amount of $40,000 to $50,000 for MRI to244 

clean out pipes on a priority basis, those fully clogged and those imperative245 

to flow from preserve areas or from lake to lake as determined by the246 

Chairman and District Manager.247 

248 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Cantwell 249 

with all in favor the motion previously approved at the 250 

June 21, 2021 was revised in the amount not to exceed 251 

$40,000 to $50,000 for MRI to clean out pipes on a 252 

priority basis was approved. 5-0 253 

254 

• The Board requested before and after photos be provided when the work is255 

completed by MRI.256 

Agenda Page #27



August 16, 2021     The Quarry CDD 

Unapproved minutes 9 

E. Field Management Report257 

• The Board requested the field management report be included in the258 

September agenda package.259 

• Mr. Faircloth inquired about the direction of sharing the report with other260 

entities.  The Board requested the report be provided to the Board and261 

District Engineer first and then to others as requested.262 

263 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Attorney’s Report 264 

A. Attorney’s Written Report265 

• Items were discussed earlier in the meeting.266 

267 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS New Business Items 268 

A. CES Quarterly Report269 

• Mr. Hardin and Mr. Escobedo answered questions from the Board regarding270 

the performance of CES.271 

o Mr. Hardin indicated the cuttings are left on the lake banks to dry for272 

up to five days, but generally are not left over the weekend.  The273 

Board requested Mr. Faircloth reach out to Mr. Garvin of the QCA to274 

see if there was any objection to this current practice.275 

276 

B. Consideration of the Third Amendment to the Inframark Contract277 

278 

On MOTION by Mr. Cantwell seconded by Mr. Flister 279 

with all in favor the Board authorized the third 280 

amendment to the Inframark contract, and it was 281 

approved. 5-0 282 

283 

284 

285 

286 

287 

288 

Agenda Page #28



August 16, 2021     The Quarry CDD 

Unapproved minutes 10 

C. Quartz Cove Fountain Installation Request289 

290 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Britt with 291 

all in favor the Quartz Cove Association fountain 292 

installation request subject to Mr. Haber’s review was 293 

approved. 5-0 294 

295 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Request/Report 296 

A. Reports297 

i. Chairman’s Report:  Mr. Omland298 

• Mr. Omland reviewed his report with the Board and updated the Board on the299 

progress with FEMA reimbursement from Hurricane Irma related expenses.300 

ii. Lake & Preserve: Mr. Flister301 

iii. Illinois Pondweed Lake Survey: Mr. Schliep302 

iv. Heritage Bay Umbrella Association Update:  Mr. Cantwell303 

304 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 305 

• Members of the audience thanked the Board for their efforts to obtain306 

FEMA funds.307 

308 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 309 

• There being no further business to come before the Board,310 

311 

On MOTION by Mr. Schliep seconded by Mr. Britt with 312 

all in favor the meeting was adjourned at 3:52 p.m. 5-0  313 

314 

315 

316 

__________________________ 317 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson 318 

Agenda Page #29



6B 

Agenda Page #30



The Quarry

Community Development District

Financial Report

August 31, 2021

Agenda Page #31



THE QUARRY
Community Development District

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet - All Funds ………………………………………………….Page 1

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund ………………………………………………….Pages 2 - 3

Debt Service Fund ………………………………………………….Page 4 

Trend Report - General Fund ………………………………………………….Pages 5 - 6

Notes to the Financial Statements ………………………………………………….Page 7

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Special Assessments - Collection Schedule(s) ………………………………………………….Pages 8 - 9

Cash and Investment Report ………………………………………………….Page 10

Bank Reconciliation ………………………………………………….Page 11

QCA Lawsuit ………………………………………………….Page 12

Payment Register by Bank Account ………………………………………………….Page 13 

Table of Contents

Agenda Page #32



The Quarry

Community Development District

Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

August 31, 2021

Agenda Page #33



THE QUARRY

Community Development District

Balance Sheet
August 31, 2021

Governmental Funds

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
GENERAL 

FUND

204 - SERIES 
2020 DEBT 
SERVICE 

FUND TOTAL

ASSETS
Cash - Checking Account 63,865$   -$  63,865$   

Allow -Doubtful Accounts (8) (27) (35)

Assessments Receivable 8 27 35

Investments:

Money Market Account 346,396 - 346,396

Revenue Fund - 379,750 379,750

TOTAL ASSETS 410,261$   379,750$   790,011$   

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 11,135$   -$  11,135$   

Accrued Expenses 5,417 - 5,417

TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,552 - 16,552

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:

Debt Service - 379,750 379,750

Unassigned: 393,709 - 393,709

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 393,709$   379,750$   773,459$   

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 410,261$   379,750$   790,011$   

Page 1

Agenda Page #34



THE QUARRY

Community Development District General Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL
ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF AUG-21

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 400$   413$   103.25% 49$   
Golf Course Revenue 18,000 18,000 100.00% -
Interest - Tax Collector - 251 0.00% -
Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 579,497 579,501 100.00% -
Special Assmnts- Delinquent - 821 0.00% -
Special Assmnts- Discounts (23,180) (21,200) 91.46% -
Other Miscellaneous Revenues 40,000 47,715 119.29% 214

TOTAL REVENUES 614,717 625,501 101.75% 263

EXPENDITURES

Administration
P/R-Board of Supervisors 12,000 7,400 61.67% 800
FICA Taxes 918 566 61.66% 61
ProfServ-Arbitrage Rebate 600 - 0.00% -
ProfServ-Engineering 45,000 27,707 61.57% 1,535
ProfServ-Legal Services 30,000 11,572 38.57% 1,545
ProfServ-Legal Litigation 25,000 4,686 18.74% -
ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 57,000 52,250 91.67% 4,750
ProfServ-Other Legal Charges - 55,650 0.00% 500
ProfServ-Property Appraiser 8,000 14,453 180.66% -
ProfServ-Trustee Fees 9,000 7,189 79.88% -
ProfServ-Consultants 20,000 10,560 52.80% 3,060
Auditing Services 4,900 4,900 100.00% 4,900
Contract-Website Hosting 1,550 362 23.35% 358
Website Compliance 1,515 1,553 102.51% -
Postage and Freight 750 1,228 163.73% 500
Insurance - General Liability 6,655 289 4.34% -
Printing and Binding 750 499 66.53% 188
Legal Advertising 4,000 2,159 53.98% 1,535
Miscellaneous Services 2,000 1,155 57.75% -
Misc-Bank Charges 50 357 714.00% 38
Misc-Special Projects 20,000 19,350 96.75% -
Misc-Assessment Collection Cost 11,590 11,182 96.48% -
Misc-Contingency 1,000 1,591 159.10% -

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Period Ending August 31, 2021

Page 2

Agenda Page #35



THE QUARRY

Community Development District General Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL
ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF AUG-21

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Period Ending August 31, 2021

Office Supplies 800 315 39.38% 315
Annual District Filing Fee 175 175 100.00% -

Total Administration 263,253 237,148 90.08% 20,085

Field
Contracts-Preserve Maintenance - 51,040 0.00% -
Lake & Preserve Maintenance 140,000 96,700 69.07% 5,417
Miscellaneous Maintenance 111,464 27,080 24.29% -
Capital Projects 50,000 - 0.00% -

Total Field 301,464 174,820 57.99% 5,417

Reserves
Reserve - Other 50,000 - 0.00% -

Total Reserves 50,000 - 0.00% -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & RESERVES 614,717 411,968 67.02% 25,502

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over (under) expenditures - 213,533 0.00% (25,239)

Net change in fund balance -$  213,533$   0.00% (25,239)$   

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2020) 180,176 180,176

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 180,176$   393,709$  

Page 3

Agenda Page #36



THE QUARRY

Community Development District 204 - Series 2020 Debt Service Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL
ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF AUG-21

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

REVENUES

Interest - Investments -$  25$   0.00% 2$   
Special Assmnts- Tax Collector - 250,997 0.00% -
Special Assmnts- Delinquent - 2,913 0.00% -
Special Assmnts- Discounts - (3,493) 0.00% -

TOTAL REVENUES - 250,442 0.00% 2

EXPENDITURES

Administration
Misc-Assessment Collection Cost - 5,008 0.00% -

Total Administration - 5,008 0.00% -

Debt Service
Principal Debt Retirement - 987,000 0.00% -
Interest Expense - 126,871 0.00% -
Cost of Issuance - 274,006 0.00% -

Total Debt Service - 1,387,877 0.00% -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 1,392,885 0.00% -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over (under) expenditures - (1,142,443) 0.00% 2

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Interfund Transfer - In - 1,244,820 0.00% -
Proceeds of Refunding Bonds - 277,373 0.00% -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - 1,522,193 0.00% -

Net change in fund balance -$  379,750$   0.00% 2$   

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2020) - -

FUND BALANCE, ENDING -$  379,750$  

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Period Ending August 31, 2021

Page 4

Agenda Page #37



TH
E 

Q
U

A
R

R
Y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

is
tri

ct
T

re
n

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

S
ep

A
ct

u
al

 T
hr

u
P

ro
je

ct
ed

F
Y

20
21

A
d

o
pt

ed
%

 o
f

A
cc

o
u

n
t 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
ua

l
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
ua

l
P

ro
je

ct
ed

8/
31

/2
02

1
N

ex
t 

1 
M

th
T

o
ta

l
B

u
d

ge
t

B
u

d
g

et

R
ev

en
u

es

In
te

re
st

 -
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
34

$ 
 

   
24

$ 
 

   
23

$ 
 

   
20

$ 
 

   
18

$ 
 

   
16

$ 
 

   
16

$ 
 

   
16

$ 
 

   
16

$ 
 

   
17

8
$ 

 
   

49
$ 

 
   

38
$ 

 
   

41
3

$ 
 

  
38

$ 
 

   
45

1
$ 

 
  

40
0

$ 
 

  
11

3%

G
ol

f C
ou

rs
e 

R
ev

en
ue

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
13

,5
00

-
4,

50
0

-
-

18
,0

00
-

18
,0

00
18

,0
00

10
0%

In
te

re
st

 -
 T

ax
 C

ol
le

ct
or

-
-

-
20

7
-

-
32

-
-

12
-

-
25

1
-

25
1

-
0%

S
pe

ci
al

 A
ss

m
nt

s-
 T

ax
 C

ol
le

ct
or

3,
22

7
29

8,
88

0
21

7,
85

5
24

,3
48

11
,2

67
7,

47
7

11
,8

54
1,

38
3

3,
21

0
-

-
-

57
9,

50
1

-
57

9,
50

1
57

9,
49

7
10

0%

S
pe

ci
al

 A
ss

m
nt

s-
 D

el
in

qu
en

t
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
82

1
-

-
-

82
1

-
82

1
-

0%

S
pe

ci
al

 A
ss

m
nt

s-
 D

is
co

un
ts

(1
69

)
(1

1,
95

5)
(8

,5
27

)
(6

83
)

(2
06

)
(3

7)
68

41
26

9
-

-
-

(2
1,

20
0)

-
(2

1,
20

0)
(2

3,
18

0)
91

%

O
th

er
 M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

R
ev

en
ue

s
1,

00
0

-
1,

00
0

-
1,

00
0

-
-

44
,5

00
-

-
21

4
-

47
,7

15
-

47
,7

15
40

,0
00

11
9%

T
o

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

4,
09

2
28

6,
94

9
21

0,
35

1
23

,8
92

12
,0

79
7,

45
6

11
,9

70
59

,4
40

4,
31

6
4,

69
0

26
3

38
62

5,
50

1
38

62
5,

53
9

61
4,

71
7

10
2%

E
xp

en
d

it
ur

es

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e

P
/R

-B
oa

rd
 o

f S
up

er
vi

so
rs

1,
60

0
20

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
80

0
80

0
80

0
60

0
-

80
0

80
0

7,
40

0
80

0
8,

20
0

12
,0

00
68

%

F
IC

A
 T

ax
es

12
2

15
46

46
46

61
61

61
46

-
61

61
56

6
61

62
7

91
8

68
%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
A

rb
itr

ag
e 

R
eb

at
e

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
60

0
-

60
0

60
0

60
0

10
0%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
6,

20
4

6,
60

1
2,

15
8

12
0

80
1

84
0

2,
99

6
2,

98
0

1,
50

0
1,

97
3

1,
53

5
-

27
,7

07
-

27
,7

07
45

,0
00

62
%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s

-
45

5
84

0
2,

08
6

1,
37

0
-

1,
54

6
52

2
1,

97
9

1,
23

0
1,

54
5

-
11

,5
72

-
11

,5
72

30
,0

00
39

%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
Le

ga
l L

iti
ga

tio
n

-
-

3,
88

8
15

6
3,

89
1

7,
06

3
12

,3
91

(2
2,

70
1)

-
-

-
-

4,
68

6
-

4,
68

6
25

,0
00

19
%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
M

gm
t C

on
su

lti
ng

 S
er

v
4,

69
1

4,
80

9
4,

75
0

4,
75

0
4,

75
0

4,
75

0
4,

75
0

4,
75

0
4,

75
0

4,
75

0
4,

75
0

4,
75

0
52

,2
50

4,
75

0
57

,0
00

57
,0

00
10

0%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
O

th
er

 L
eg

al
 C

ha
rg

es
81

4
-

1,
74

5
-

-
1,

50
0

21
0

43
,4

56
6,

55
0

87
5

50
0

-
55

,6
50

-
55

,6
50

-
0%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

A
pp

ra
is

er
14

,4
53

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
14

,4
53

-
14

,4
53

8,
00

0
18

1%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
T

ru
st

ee
 F

ee
s

2,
16

3
5,

02
6

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

7,
18

9
-

7,
18

9
9,

00
0

80
%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
C

on
su

lta
nt

s
-

-
-

-
5,

00
0

-
-

2,
50

0
-

-
3,

06
0

-
10

,5
60

-
10

,5
60

20
,0

00
53

%

A
ud

iti
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
4,

90
0

-
4,

90
0

-
4,

90
0

4,
90

0
10

0%

C
on

tr
ac

t-
W

eb
si

te
 H

os
tin

g
-

-
-

77
6

(7
76

)
-

-
-

-
3

35
8

-
36

2
-

36
2

1,
55

0
23

%

W
eb

si
te

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

38
8

-
-

(3
88

)
77

6
-

38
8

-
-

38
8

-
-

1,
55

3
-

1,
55

3
1,

51
5

10
3%

P
os

ta
ge

 a
nd

 F
re

ig
ht

5
7

69
30

5
28

9
7

6
6

28
6

50
0

-
1,

22
8

-
1,

22
8

75
0

16
4%

In
su

ra
nc

e 
- G

en
er

al
 L

ia
bi

lit
y

28
9

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
28

9
-

28
9

6,
65

5
4%

P
rin

tin
g 

an
d 

B
in

di
ng

48
14

13
10

9
36

22
31

-
7

30
18

8
-

49
9

-
49

9
75

0
67

%

Le
ga

l A
dv

er
tis

in
g

-
-

-
-

-
35

0
-

-
27

4
-

1,
53

5
-

2,
15

9
-

2,
15

9
4,

00
0

54
%

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1,

15
5

-
-

-
-

1,
15

5
-

1,
15

5
2,

00
0

58
%

M
is

c-
B

an
k 

C
ha

rg
es

81
91

39
-

-
18

19
21

24
27

38
32

35
7

32
38

9
50

77
9%

M
is

c-
S

pe
ci

al
 P

ro
je

ct
s

-
-

-
-

-
-

2,
50

0
3,

92
5

6,
42

5
6,

50
0

-
-

19
,3

50
-

19
,3

50
20

,0
00

97
%

M
is

c-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

C
os

t
61

5,
73

8
4,

18
7

47
3

22
1

14
9

23
8

28
86

-
-

-
11

,1
82

-
11

,1
82

11
,5

90
96

%

M
is

c-
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
-

-
-

1,
59

1
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1,

59
1

-
1,

59
1

1,
00

0
15

9%

O
ffi

ce
 S

up
pl

ie
s

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

31
5

-
31

5
-

31
5

80
0

39
%

A
nn

ua
l D

is
tri

ct
 F

ilin
g 

Fe
e

-
17

5
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
17

5
-

17
5

17
5

10
0%

TO
TA

L

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
s

Fo
r t

he
 P

er
io

d 
En

di
ng

 A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
1

 R
ep

or
t D

at
e:

 9
/2

/2
02

1
Pa

ge
 5

Agenda Page #38



TH
E 

Q
U

A
R

R
Y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

is
tri

ct
T

re
n

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

 -
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

S
ep

A
ct

u
al

 T
hr

u
P

ro
je

ct
ed

F
Y

20
21

A
d

o
pt

ed
%

 o
f

A
cc

o
u

n
t 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
ua

l
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
u

al
A

ct
ua

l
P

ro
je

ct
ed

8/
31

/2
02

1
N

ex
t 

1 
M

th
T

o
ta

l
B

u
d

ge
t

B
u

d
g

et

TO
TA

L

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s,

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
an

d 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
s

Fo
r t

he
 P

er
io

d 
En

di
ng

 A
ug

us
t 3

1,
 2

02
1

T
o

ta
l A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

30
,9

19
23

,1
31

18
,3

35
10

,6
24

17
,0

04
15

,5
60

25
,9

36
37

,5
03

22
,2

69
15

,7
82

20
,0

85
6,

24
4

23
7,

14
8

6,
24

4
24

3,
39

2
26

3,
25

3
92

%

F
ie

ld C
on

tr
ac

ts
-P

re
se

rv
e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-
-

-
-

-
-

25
,9

58
-

25
,0

83
-

-
25

,0
83

51
,0

40
25

,0
83

76
,1

23
-

0%

La
ke

 &
 P

re
se

rv
e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

5,
41

7
5,

41
7

7,
74

2
9,

44
5

10
,8

34
15

,3
82

5,
41

7
5,

41
7

20
,7

95
5,

41
7

5,
41

7
5,

41
7

96
,7

00
5,

41
7

10
2,

11
7

14
0,

00
0

73
%

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
-

-
-

-
-

-
4,

72
0

5,
07

0
-

17
,2

90
-

-
27

,0
80

-
27

,0
80

11
1,

46
4

24
%

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
50

,0
00

0%

T
o

ta
l F

ie
ld

5,
41

7
5,

41
7

7,
74

2
9,

44
5

10
,8

34
15

,3
82

36
,0

95
10

,4
87

45
,8

78
22

,7
07

5,
41

7
30

,5
00

17
4,

82
0

30
,5

00
20

5,
32

0
30

1,
46

4
68

%

T
o

ta
l E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s
36

,3
36

28
,5

48
26

,0
77

20
,0

69
27

,8
38

30
,9

42
62

,0
31

47
,9

90
68

,1
47

38
,4

89
25

,5
02

36
,7

43
41

1,
96

8
36

,7
43

44
8,

71
1

56
4,

71
7

79
%

R
es

er
ve

s

R
es

er
ve

 -
 O

th
er

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
50

,0
00

0%

T
o

ta
l R

es
er

ve
s

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
50

,0
00

0%

T
o

ta
l E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
&

 R
es

er
ve

s
36

,3
36

28
,5

48
26

,0
77

20
,0

69
27

,8
38

30
,9

42
62

,0
31

47
,9

90
68

,1
47

38
,4

89
25

,5
02

36
,7

43
41

1,
96

8
36

,7
43

44
8,

71
1

61
4,

71
7

73
%

E
xc

es
s 

(d
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

 o
f r

ev
en

ue
s

O
ve

r 
(u

nd
er

) 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
(3

2,
24

4)
25

8,
40

1
18

4,
27

4
3,

82
3

(1
5,

75
9)

(2
3,

48
6)

(5
0,

06
1)

11
,4

50
(6

3,
83

1)
(3

3,
79

9)
(2

5,
23

9)
(3

6,
70

6)
21

3,
53

3
(3

6,
70

6)
17

6,
82

7
-

0%

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
n

g
 S

ou
rc

es
 (

U
se

s)

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 (
U

se
 o

f)
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
(3

6,
70

6)
-

(3
6,

70
6)

(3
6,

70
6)

-
0%

T
o

ta
l F

in
an

ci
n

g
 S

o
ur

ce
s 

(U
se

s)
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

(3
6,

70
6)

-
(3

6,
70

6)
(3

6,
70

6)
-

0%

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
(3

2,
24

4)
$ 

   
25

8,
40

1
$ 

  
18

4,
27

4
$ 

  
3,

82
3

$ 
   

   
 

(1
5,

75
9)

$ 
   

(2
3,

48
6)

$ 
   

(5
0,

06
1)

$ 
   

11
,4

50
$ 

   
 

(6
3,

83
1)

$ 
   

(3
3,

79
9)

$ 
   

(2
5,

23
9)

$ 
   

(3
6,

70
6)

$ 
   

21
3,

53
3

$ 
   

 
(3

6,
70

6)
$ 

   
  

17
6,

82
7

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
 

  
0%

F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

, B
eg

in
n

in
g

 (
O

ct
 1

, 2
02

0)
18

0,
17

6
-

18
0,

17
6

18
0,

17
6

F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

, E
n

d
in

g
39

3,
70

9
$ 

   
 

(3
6,

70
6)

$ 
   

  
35

7,
00

3
$ 

   
 

18
0,

17
6

$ 
   

 

 R
ep

or
t D

at
e:

 9
/2

/2
02

1
Pa

ge
 6

Agenda Page #39



T
H

E
 Q

U
A

R
R

Y

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

is
tri

ct
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 E

xp
e
n
d
itu

re
s
 -

 A
ll 

F
u
n
d
s

G
en

er
al

 F
u

nd

►

B
ud

ge
t t

ar
ge

t 9
1.

67
%

V
ar

ia
n

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s

 A
cc

o
un

t 
N

am
e 

 A
n

nu
al

 

B
ud

ge
t 

 Y
T

D
 A

ct
ua

l 

%
 o

f 

B
ud

ge
t

R
ev

en
u

es

O
th

er
 M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

R
ev

en
ue

$4
0,

00
0

$4
7,

71
5

11
9%

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n

P
ro

fS
er

v-
Le

ga
l L

iti
ga

tio
n

$2
5,

00
0

$4
,6

86
19

%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
O

th
er

 L
eg

al
 C

ha
rg

es
$0

$5
5,

65
0

0%

P
ro

fS
er

v-
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

A
pp

ra
is

er
$8

,0
00

$1
4,

45
3

18
1%

C
ol

lie
r 

C
ou

nt
y 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
A

pp
ra

is
er

 n
on

-a
d 

va
lo

re
m

, b
ud

ge
t b

as
ed

 o
n 

pr
io

r 
ye

ar
 a

ct
ua

ls
; B

ill
in

g 
fo

r 
20

20
/2

02
1 

$3
9,

51
3 

le
ss

 2
01

9/
20

20
 e

xc
es

s 
fe

es
 $

25
,0

60

W
eb

si
te

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e

$1
,5

15
$1

,5
53

10
3%

P
os

ta
ge

 a
nd

 F
re

ig
ht

$7
50

$1
,2

28
16

4%
Fe

dE
x;

 IM
S

; L
ar

ry
 H

. R
ay

, r
ol

l p
os

ta
ge

M
is

c-
B

an
k 

C
ha

rg
es

$5
0

$3
57

71
4%

H
an

co
ck

 W
hi

tn
ey

 a
cc

ou
nt

 a
na

ly
si

s 
fe

es
 to

-d
at

e 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

M
is

c-
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
$1

,0
00

$1
,5

91
15

9%
G

O
D

A
D

D
Y

.C
O

M
, 3

65
 e

m
ai

l

F
ie

ld

C
on

tr
ac

ts
-P

re
se

rv
e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$0
$5

1,
04

0
0%

P
en

in
su

la
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t ,
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

D
is

as
te

r 
La

w
 &

 C
on

su
lti

ng
, l

eg
al

 fe
es

 th
ru

 J
ul

y 
20

21

6 
va

ria
nc

e 
zo

ni
ng

 fr
om

 e
as

em
en

t p
ay

m
en

ts
 @

 $
50

0 
ea

ch
; H

er
ita

ge
 B

ay
 U

m
br

el
la

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

$4
4,

50
0;

 F
Y

 2
02

0 
IR

S
 R

ef
un

d 

$2
15

E
xp

la
n

at
io

n

In
ne

rs
yn

c 
S

tu
di

o,
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 w
eb

/c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

se
rv

ic
es

G
ra

nt
, F

rid
ki

n,
 P

ea
rs

on
 le

ga
l f

ee
s 

th
ru

 A
pr

 2
02

1

N
ot

es
 t

o 
th

e 
Fi

na
n

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

A
ug

us
t 

31
, 2

02
1

A
ss

et
s

■
 A

llo
w

 -
 D

o
ub

tf
u

l A
cc

o
un

ts
 -

 C
ol

lie
r 

C
ou

nt
y 

Ta
x 

C
ol

le
ct

or
 F

Y
 2

02
0 

ch
ar

ge
 b

ac
ks

 d
ue

 to
 N

S
F

 c
he

ck
s

■
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 R

ec
ei

va
b

le
 -

 C
ol

lie
r 

C
ou

nt
y 

Ta
x 

C
ol

le
ct

or
 F

Y
 2

02
0 

ch
ar

ge
 b

ac
ks

 d
ue

 to
 N

S
F

 c
he

ck
s

Pa
ge

 7

Agenda Page #40



The Quarry

Community Development District

Supporting Schedules

August 31, 2021

Agenda Page #41



THE QUARRY

Community Development District All Funds

Discount / Gross Series 2015 Series 2018 Series 2019 Series 2020

Date Net Amount (Penalties) Collection Amount General Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service 

Received Received Amount Cost Received Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Assessments Levied 2,498,960$  579,501$   1,239,461$   322,125$   357,873$   -$   

Allocation % 100.00% 23.19% 49.60% 12.89% 14.32% 0.00%

Real Estate - Installment

10/29/20 12,923$   731$   264$   13,918$   3,227$   6,903$   1,794$   1,993$   -$   

12/22/20 1,860 59 38 1,957 454 - - - 1,503

01/22/21 4,724 149 96 4,970 1,152 - - - 3,817

03/22/21 2,872 - 59 2,930 680 - - - 2,251

04/22/21 3,937 (21) 80 3,996 927 - - - 3,069

Real Estate - Current

11/16/20 22,268 947 454 23,669 5,489 11,740 3,051 3,390 -

11/20/20 567,893 24,145 11,590 603,628 139,979 299,394 77,810 86,445 -

11/27/20 622,386 26,462 12,702 661,549 153,411 328,122 85,276 94,740 -

12/10/20 818,188 34,536 16,698 869,422 201,616 431,225 112,072 124,509 -

12/22/20 64,575 2,176 1,318 68,070 15,785 - - - 52,284

01/22/21 95,287 2,795 1,945 100,027 23,196 - - - 76,831

02/19/21 46,743 889 954 48,585 11,267 - - - 37,319

03/22/21 28,570 161 583 29,314 6,798 - - - 22,516

04/22/21 46,446 (270) 948 47,123 10,928 - - - 36,196

05/21/21 6,018 (179) 123 5,962 1,383 - - - 4,579

Real Estate - Delinquent

06/14/21 5,250 (156) 107 5,201 1,206 - - - 3,995

06/17/21 8,721 (259) 178 8,640 2,004 - - - 6,636

TOTAL 2,358,661$  92,164$    48,136$   2,498,960$  579,501$   1,077,384$   280,003$   311,076$   250,997$   

% COLLECTED 100.00% 100.00% 86.92% 86.92% 86.92% 0.00%

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - Collier County Tax Collector

(Monthly Collection Distributions)

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2021

ALLOCATION BY FUND

Page 8

Agenda Page #42



THE QUARRY

Community Development District All Funds

Discount / Gross Series 2020

Date Net Amount (Penalties) Collection Amount General Debt Service 

Received Received Amount Cost Received Fund Fund

Assessments Levied FY 2019 2,634,211$  579,501$   -$   

Allocation % 100.00% 22.00% 0.00%

Tax Collector Refund due to NSF check(s)

07/06/20 (3,769) - - (3,769) (829) -

06/14/21 4,428 (784) 90 3,734 821 2,913

TOTAL 2,499,287$  95,582$    39,307$  2,634,176$  579,493 2,913

% COLLECTED 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%

TOTAL OUTSTANDING 35$   8$   (2,913)

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - Collier County Tax Collector

(Monthly Collection Distributions)

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2020

ALLOCATION BY FUND

 Report Date: 8/5/2021 Page 9

Agenda Page #43



THE QUARRY

Community Development District

ACCOUNT NAME BANK NAME YIELD BALANCE

OPERATING FUND

Operating - Checking Account Hancock Whitney 0.00% 63,865$   

Public Funds MMA Variance Account BankUnited 0.15% 346,396

Subtotal 410,261

DEBT SERVICE AND CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Series 2020 Revenue Fund U.S. Bank 0.01% 379,750

Total 790,011$   

Cash & Investment Report
August 31, 2021

Page 10

Agenda Page #44



Posting 
Date

Document 
Type

Document 
No. Description Amount

Cleared 
Amount Difference

Outstanding Checks

5/18/2021 Payment 8267 DEAN A. BRITT 184.70 0.00 184.70
8/24/2021 Payment 8297 TIMOTHY B. CANTWELL 184.70 0.00 184.70

8/24/2021 Payment 8298 LLOYD SCHLIEP 184.70 0.00 184.70

8/24/2021 Payment 8299 STANLEY  9. OMLAND 184.70 0.00 184.70

8/25/2021 Payment 8300 HOPPING GREEN & SAMS 1,544.50 0.00 1,544.50

8/25/2021 Payment 8301 PENINSULA IMPROVEMENT CORP. 5,417.00 0.00 5,417.00
8/27/2021 Payment 8302 DEAN A. BRITT 184.70 0.00 184.70

Total Outstanding Checks...................................................................................................................... 7,885.00 7,885.00

G/L Balance 63,864.96

Bank Account No. 3489

Statement No. 08-21

Statement Date 8/31/2021

Statement Balance 71,749.96G/L Balance (LCY) 63,864.96

Difference 0.00

Ending G/L Balance 63,864.96

Subtotal 63,864.96

Outstanding Deposits 0.00

Negative Adjustments 0.00

Positive Adjustments 0.00

Subtotal 71,749.96

Outstanding Checks 7,885.00

Ending Balance 63,864.96

Differences 0.00

Hancock & Whitney Bank  General Fund 

Bank Reconciliation
The Quarry CDD

Page 11

Agenda Page #45



THE QUARRY
Community Development District

Date Vendor Inv # Check # Amount Hours Description

2/29/2020 HGS 113982 8081 728.00$ 2.8 Wes Haber hours
6/30/2020 HGS 116536 8140 156.00 0.6 Wes Haber hours
8/31/2020 HGS 117756 8165 234.00 0.9 Wes Haber hours
9/30/2020 HGS 118420 8187 78.00 0.3 Wes Haber hours

12/30/2020 HGS 119562 8211 156.00 0.6 Wes Haber hours
1/29/2021 HGS 120217 8223 78.00 0.3 Wes Haber hours

3/1/2021 HGS 121097 8242 78.00 0.3 Wes Haber hours

Total 1,508.00$ 5.8 Hopping Green Sams

9/4/2020 GFP 113081 8146 700.00 2.5 Michael Traficante hours
10/8/2020 GFP 113350 8161 814.00 2.2 Michael Traficante hours
11/6/2020 GFP 113573 8177 455.00 1.3 Michael Traficante hours
12/7/2020 GFP 113774 8192 1,290.00 4.8 Michael Traficante hours

1/9/2021 GFP 113909 8234 1,500.00 11.5 Michael Traficante hours
4/10/2021 GFP 114541 8241 210.00 0.6 Michael Traficante hours

5/5/2021 GFP 114688 8263 105.00 0.3 Michael Traficante hours

Total 5,074.00$ 23.2 Grant, Fridkin, Pearson

Grand Total 6,582.00$ 29.0

QCA Lawsuit
August 31, 2021

Page 12

Agenda Page #46



P
ym

t

T
yp

e

C
h

ec
k 

/

A
C

H
 N

o
.

D
at

e
P

ay
ee

T
yp

e
P

ay
ee

In
vo

ic
e 

N
o

.
P

ay
m

en
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
In

vo
ic

e 
/ G

L
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
G

/L
 A

cc
o

u
n

t #
A

m
o

u
n

t 

P
ai

d

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
 &

 W
H

IT
N

E
Y

 B
A

N
K

  G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
  -

 (
A

C
C

T
# 

X
X

X
X

X
34

89
)

C
he

ck
82

94
08

/0
6/

21
V

en
do

r
C

P
H

12
65

70
Q

U
A

R
R

Y
 P

H
A

S
E

 1
 T

H
R

U
 7

/1
8/

21
P

ro
fS

er
v-

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

00
1-

53
10

13
-5

15
01

$1
,5

35
.0

5

C
he

ck
82

95
08

/0
6/

21
V

en
do

r
D

IS
A

S
T

E
R

 L
A

W
 &

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

, L
LC

22
34

21
07

00
47

1
JU

LY
 2

02
1 

F
E

E
S

P
ro

fS
er

v-
O

th
er

 L
eg

al
 C

ha
rg

es
00

1-
53

10
28

-5
14

01
$5

00
.0

0

C
he

ck
82

96
08

/0
6/

21
V

en
do

r
B

E
R

G
E

R
, T

O
O

M
B

S
, E

LA
M

,
35

45
27

A
U

D
IT

 S
V

C
 F

Y
 9

/3
0/

20
20

A
ud

iti
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
00

1-
53

20
02

-5
13

01
$4

,9
00

.0
0

C
he

ck
82

97
08

/2
4/

21
E

m
pl

oy
ee

T
IM

O
T

H
Y

 B
. C

A
N

T
W

E
LL

P
A

Y
R

O
LL

A
ug

us
t 2

4,
 2

02
1 

P
ay

ro
ll 

P
os

tin
g

$1
84

.7
0

C
he

ck
82

98
08

/2
4/

21
E

m
pl

oy
ee

LL
O

Y
D

 S
C

H
LI

E
P

P
A

Y
R

O
LL

A
ug

us
t 2

4,
 2

02
1 

P
ay

ro
ll 

P
os

tin
g

$1
84

.7
0

C
he

ck
82

99
08

/2
4/

21
E

m
pl

oy
ee

S
T

A
N

LE
Y

  9
. O

M
LA

N
D

P
A

Y
R

O
LL

A
ug

us
t 2

4,
 2

02
1 

P
ay

ro
ll 

P
os

tin
g

$1
84

.7
0

C
he

ck
83

00
08

/2
5/

21
V

en
do

r
H

O
P

P
IN

G
 G

R
E

E
N

 &
 S

A
M

S
12

44
04

M
A

Y
 2

02
1 

F
E

E
S

P
ro

fS
er

v-
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s

00
1-

53
10

23
-5

14
01

$1
,5

44
.5

0

C
he

ck
83

01
08

/2
5/

21
V

en
do

r
P

E
N

IN
S

U
LA

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 C
O

R
P

.
IN

V
00

80
00

JU
N

E
 2

02
1 

LA
K

E
 &

 L
IT

T
O

R
A

L 
M

A
IN

T
La

ke
 &

 P
re

se
rv

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
00

1-
54

61
88

-5
39

01
$5

,4
17

.0
0

C
he

ck
83

02
08

/2
7/

21
E

m
pl

oy
ee

D
E

A
N

 A
. B

R
IT

T
P

A
Y

R
O

LL
A

ug
us

t 2
7,

 2
02

1 
P

ay
ro

ll 
P

os
tin

g
$1

84
.7

0

A
cc

o
u

n
t T

o
ta

l
$1

4,
63

5.
35

T
H

E
 Q

U
A

R
R

Y
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

Pa
ym

en
t R

eg
is

te
r b

y 
B

an
k 

A
cc

ou
nt

Fo
r t

he
 P

er
io

d 
fro

m
 8

/1
/2

1 
to

 8
/3

1/
21

(S
or

te
d 

by
 C

he
ck

 / 
AC

H
 N

o.
)

Pa
ge

 1
3

Agenda Page #47



6Cii 

Agenda Page #48



Su
rn

am
e

Fi
rs

t N
am

e

H
of

ke
s

Jo
hn

 &
 M

ar
y

90
51

 B
re

ak
w

at
er

 D
riv

e
la

m
al

@
ch

ar
te

r.n
et

3'
 x

 6
 1

/2
 la

nd
in

g 
ou

ts
id

e 
w

es
t l

an
ai

 d
oo

r a
t g

ra
de

 
(2

' x
 6

 1
/2

) i
n 

ea
se

m
en

t 
ar

ea

16
-A

ug
-2

1
16

-A
ug

-2
1

M
ar

tin
s

Ri
ch

ar
d 

&
 E

la
in

e
90

75
 G

ra
ph

ite
 C

irc
le

R
EJ

M
M

5@
ao

l.c
om

in
st

al
l J

 d
es

ig
n 

do
ck

25
-A

ug
-2

1
25

-A
ug

-2
1

Su
rn

am
e

Fi
rs

t N
am

e

Tu
rn

m
an

Ti
m

ot
hy

 &
 L

in
da

92
37

 G
yp

su
m

 W
ay

ltt
ur

nm
an

@
ao

l.c
om

m
ov

ed
 d

oc
k 

fr
om

 9
17

2 
Fl

in
t C

t
6-

Ja
n-

21
11

-Ja
n-

21
2-

Ju
l-2

1
4-

Fe
b-

21

Cu
rr

y
Ke

vi
n

91
76

 F
lin

t C
t

ke
vi

nc
ur

ry
.5

5@
gm

ai
l.c

om
Bo

at
 li

ft
 a

nd
 re

pa
ir

15
-O

ct
-2

0
12

-N
ov

-2
0

13
-N

ov
-2

0
Ye

s

D
aB

ae
ne

Ke
nn

et
h

90
43

 G
ra

ph
ite

 C
irc

le
ke

nd
ab

ae
ne

@
ya

ho
o.

co
m

Re
pa

ir 
w

al
kw

ay
15

-O
ct

-2
0

12
-N

ov
-2

0
13

-N
ov

-2
0

Ye
s

Fo
rs

te
r

Ba
rb

ar
a

92
86

 M
ar

bl
es

to
ne

 D
r

m
@

fo
rs

te
ru

sa
.c

om
 

Bo
at

 d
oc

k 
in

st
al

la
tio

n
Ye

s
13

-Ju
l-2

0
13

-Ju
l-2

0

G
ob

er
Do

ug
la

s &
 L

in
da

98
30

 S
la

te
 C

t
dg

ob
e1

@
co

m
ca

st
.n

et
lin

da
go

be
rm

k@
co

m
ca

st
.n

et
Re

m
ov

e 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n
7-

Au
g-

20
7-

Au
g-

20
14

-A
ug

-2
0

Ye
s

Kr
am

er
Ad

ria
n 

L
93

96
 S

la
te

 C
t

ak
ra

m
er

@
ho

lly
co

ns
t.c

om
bo

at
 d

ec
k

11
-D

ec
-1

9
11

-D
ec

-1
9

10
-Ja

n-
20

Ye
s

M
cF

ar
le

ne
Tr

ac
y

92
73

 Q
ua

rr
y 

Dr
iv

e
au

di
ot

ra
cy

@
gm

ai
l.c

om
in

st
al

lin
g 

flo
at

in
g 

do
ck

 1
5 

x 
20

w
/6

' w
al

kw
ay

22
-Ja

n-
21

26
-Ja

n-
21

26
-Ja

n-
21

25
-F

eb
-2

1

M
oo

re
G

eo
ffr

ey
 A

. (
Tr

us
t)

97
19

 N
ic

ke
l R

id
ge

 C
irc

le
de

bo
ra

hb
m

oo
re

@
ya

ho
o.

co
m

Br
ic

k 
pa

ve
r, 

w
al

kw
ay

22
-Ja

n-
21

26
-Ja

n-
21

26
-Ja

n-
21

19
-A

pr
-2

1
22

-J
ul

-2
1

O
m

la
nd

St
an

 &
 N

an
ci

92
93

 Q
ua

rr
y 

Dr
so

m
la

nd
@

om
la

nd
.c

om
in

st
al

l p
av

er
 w

al
k 

th
ro

ug
h 

LM
E 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

el
ev

at
io

ns
22

-Ju
n-

20
22

-Ju
n-

20
Ye

s
Ye

s

Pa
rk

er
Do

na
ld

 G
.

88
22

 S
pi

nn
er

 C
ov

e 
Ln

dg
pa

rk
er

10
47

@
ya

ho
o.

co
m

Do
ck

 R
ep

ai
r

10
-S

ep
-2

0
8-

O
ct

-2
0

12
-O

ct
-2

0
Ye

s

Ta
yl

or
Sc

ot
t J

 a
nd

 R
ho

nd
a 

M
.

93
32

 G
ra

ni
te

 C
t

sj
to

ne
up

@
gm

ai
l.c

om
pa

ve
r w

al
kw

ay
 to

 d
oc

k 
w

ith
 p

av
er

 la
nd

in
g 

in
 

fr
on

t o
f d

ec
k

6-
N

ov
-1

9
11

-D
ec

-1
9

10
-Ja

n-
20

Ye
s

Re
co

rd
ed

S c
op

e 
of

 W
or

k
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
Re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
In

fr
am

ar
k

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

se
nt

 to
 

Al
be

rt

Co
nf

irm
ed

 
re

ce
ip

t o
f 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fr
om

 C
PH

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
dd

re
ss

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
dd

re
ss

PE
N

D
IN

G
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

S
VA

RI
AN

CE
 E

AS
EM

EN
TS

AP
PR

O
VE

D
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

S

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

Re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

In
fr

am
ar

k
Sc

op
e 

of
 W

or
k

Em
ai

l

Ap
p l

ic
an

t
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
Ap

pr
ov

ed

Co
nf

irm
ed

 
re

ce
ip

t o
f 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fr
om

 C
PH

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

se
nt

 to
 

Al
be

rt

Ap
pl

ic
an

t
Pe

nd
in

g 
Fu

rt
he

r 
Re

vi
ew

Em
ai

l

Agenda Page #49

mailto:lamal@charter.net
mailto:ltturnman@aol.com
mailto:kevincurry.55@gmail.com
mailto:kendabaene@yahoo.com
mailto:m@forsterusa.com
mailto:dgobe1@comcast.net
mailto:dgobe1@comcast.net
mailto:akramer@hollyconst.com
mailto:audiotracy@gmail.com
mailto:deborahbmoore@yahoo.com
mailto:somland@omland.com
mailto:dgparker1047@yahoo.com
mailto:sjtoneup@gmail.com


6Ciia

Agenda Page #50



September 8, 2021 

Justin Faircloth 
The Quarry CDD 
c/o Inframark  
5911 Country Lakes Drive 
Fort Myers, Florida 33905 

RE:   9051 Breakwater Drive – Brick Paver Pathway Installation 

Dear Mr. Faircloth, 

At the request of the Board of Supervisors, CPH visited the above referenced location on August 
20th, 2021 to observe and document the installation of a brick paver pathway encroaching into 
the existing QCDD drainage maintenance easement. Our findings and comments are listed 
below: 

- Path constructed encroaches into the existing drainage maintenance easement a
distance of approximately 2.5’ (in width) and 6.5’ (in length). However, to the best of
our knowledge and based on the field observations, it seems the contractor has
respected the existing drainage swale flow pattern.

2216 Altamont Avenue 
Fort Myers, Florida 33901 

Phone: 239.332.5499 
Fax: 239.332.2955 

www.cphcorp.com 

Agenda Page #51



- An apparently illegal pool overflow/drain connection into the existing drainage system
was observed. This type of drain should be located in an area allowing the overflow to
percolate into the ground.

Please note that this review did not include an evaluation of the proposed design for the 
constructed improvements, a check for compliance with local, State, or Federal codes and/or an 
evaluation of the structural elements associated with the boat dock.  

Please do not hesitate to contact us if there are any questions or if additional information is 
needed. 

Sincerely, 

Albert Lopez 
Office Manager

Agenda Page #52



6Ciib

Agenda Page #53



THE QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT APPLICATION FORM 

FOR VARIANCE FROM EASEMENT 

This form should be completed by homeowners who are applying to the Quarry Community Association 

("HOA") to install improvements on a lot, where such installation may impact the easement rights of the Quarry 

Community Development District ("Coo•). Notably, the COD is responsible for the stormwater system and 

conservation areas serving the community, and, accordingly, holds certain rights in, among other lands, all 

"Drainage Easements," "Lake Maintenance Easements/ and "Conservation Easements." It is the homeowners 

responsibility to carefully review all property records and ensure that the homeowner and his or her contractor 

do not construct Improvements (e.g., fences, landscaping, sprinklers, patios, decks, air conditioners, pools, etc.) 

within any such easement areas. (Note that such easements are identified on the community plats, but the 

plats may or may not correctly identify the COD as the responsible party. Please contact the COD if you are in 

doubt about any such easements.) 

While the COD discourages such requests, the CDD may in its sole discretion elect to grant limited variances in 

order to allow improvements to be placed in an easement area where the improvements will not materially 

affect the CDD's stormwater system. To obtain such a variance, a homeowner must: 

1. Complete this Application Form.

2. Provide a copy of any application materials submitted to the HOA, including but not llmited to:

a. Site Plan,

b. Sketch of Work, and

c. Design Plans

3. Submit a check for $500.00 to the COD for the CDD's cost to review the application. Additional fees

may be charged as well at cost, in the event that the COD is required to spend additional monies on

engineering and/or other consultants to review the appllcation.

4. Complete and execute a Variance Agreement for Installation of Improvements within COD Easement

("Variance Agreement 1').

S. Provide a Certificate of Insurance showing: 1) bodily injury and property damage liability insurance in

the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence, 2) statutory worker's compensation insurance, 3) employer's

liability insurance, and 4) automobile liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence, all

of which shall be maintained in force for the duration of the work. The Certificate shall name the CDD as

an additional insured.

Once the inforrn,Hion is provided, it will be reviewed by the COD Staff, and your property will be inspPc:tt>d to 

determine whether a variance Is appropriate. Then, a final determination will be made by either CDD Staff 

and/or the CDD's Board of Supervisors, and a notice will be sent indicating whether your application was 

approved or denied. 

If your application ,s approved. the Owner shall notify the CDD prior to commencing work .ind upon 

completing work, so that the COD may inspect the applicable easement area. Any such inspection shall not be 

deemed an approval by the COD of any work, .ind the COO shall retain all rights to enforce the terms of the 

Variance Agreement. 

Agenda Page #54



Agenda Page #55



Agenda Page #56



Agenda Page #57



Agenda Page #58



Agenda Page #59



Agenda Page #60



Agenda Page #61



Agenda Page #62



Agenda Page #63



Agenda Page #64



Agenda Page #65



Agenda Page #66



Agenda Page #67



Agenda Page #68



6D 

Agenda Page #69



The Quarry CDD 

3rd Quarter 2021 – Field Management Report 
Inspection Dates: 6/2/21, 6/19/21, 6/24/21 & 7/14/21 

www.inframarkims.com 

Inspected by: Justin Faircloth 

Agenda Page #70

http://www.inframarkims.com/


Inframark Monthly Management Report 1 

1. Lake Management
Overall the lakes were healthy with minimal algae and invasive issues. Greater attention needs
to be given to weed management along the banks. The summer provides an increase in plant
growth and this should be considered in the management planning.  Hydrilla only appeared to
be a significant problem in one lake, but a targeted approach should be developed to seek to
eradicate it if at all possible. Additional lake maintenance information is found below; all lake
issues are low density unless otherwise noted.

a. Algae on Lakes: 33, 34, & 36. Medium density on lake 33 (shown) which was reported to the

vendor.

b. Littorals:
i. Healthy littorals were observed on the northwestern banks of lake 38. There is a large

section of littoral shelf just below the high-water mark that has minimal littoral growth.
The Board may wish to consider efforts to have additional littorals established in this area
to minimize lake bank erosion.

ii. Lake 61 has several patches of spikerush and yellow canna on the north bank that
should be encouraged to grow on the other bare areas to help stablize the lake bank.
Stabilization of the bank is important due to the significant water fluctuation
throughout the year.

Agenda Page #71



Inframark Monthly Management Report 2 

iii. Lake 63 has some good pockets of Thalia that are growing well along the lake banks.  If
these littorals are developing well on the banks then additional littorals are likely to grow if
a planting program was established.

iv. Lake 63A has one pocket of littorals at the north end of the lake, the rest of the lak is bare.
Additional littorals are recommended to be planted.

v. Lake 63B is a lake that could benefit from a littoral planting as most of the lake banks
are bare.

Agenda Page #72



Inframark Monthly Management Report 3 

c. Weeds:
i. Alligator Weed in Lakes: No issues observed.

ii. Bitter Melon/Balsam Apple:   No issues observed.

iii. Brazilian Pepper:  37 (a few trees in the southwest corner noted along the bank that

should be removed to prevent further seed source within the District).

iv. Cattails in Lakes: No issues observed.

v. Climbing Hemp Vine in Lakes: 30 (near the #18 green) & 38 (north bank). Lake 38

shown.

vi. Dollar Weed in Lakes: No issues observed.

vii. Hydrilla in Lakes:  36 & 38. High density in lake 38. A treatment plan should be developed

to rid this lake of this invasive plant.

Agenda Page #73



Inframark Monthly Management Report 4 

viii. Illinois Pondweed in Lakes: 30, 33, 34, & 63B. No large sections were seen as topping

out.

ix. Palms on Lake Banks: 30(south bank behind the Coastline Ct. homes adjacent to the tee

boxes for #18 hole), 38(southeast bank), & 40(north bank).  The Board may wish to have
young palms sprayed out while developing before they become a future maintenance
obligation.

Agenda Page #74



Inframark Monthly Management Report 5 

x. Red Ludwigia in Lakes: No issues observed.

xi. Sedges in Lakes: No issues observed.

xii. Spatterdock/Lily Pads in Lakes: 31. The Board may wish to have it sprayed out.

xiii. Torpedo Grass in Lakes: 30, 36, 38, & Control Structure W1L30. High density on lake 36

and Control Structure W1L30, treatment is needed. Lakes 30, 36, & 38 shown.

xiv. Various Lake Bank Weeds: 30, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 62, 63B, & control structure

W1W4;. High density on lakes 30 (east of Weathered Stone Dr./Quarry Dr. intersection), 22,
34, 35, & control structure W1W4; treatment is needed.  Lakes 30, 32, 34, 35, & 37 pictured.

Agenda Page #75



Inframark Monthly Management Report 6 

xv. Various Submerged weeds in Lakes: No issues observed.

xvi. Trash in Lakes: 30, 31, 38, 50, & 63B. Pictures shown of lake 38.

Agenda Page #76



Inframark Monthly Management Report 7 

d. Bulkheads: No issues observed.

e. Clippings in Lakes: No issues observed.

2. Lake Bank Erosion
a. Lake 30

i. Erosion was noted east of the gatehouse on Quarry Dr.

ii. It is recommended that all drainage pipes be buried and ran into the lake below the low-
water mark to avoid additional erosion to the lake banks. A drain pipe was observed exposed
on the lake bank behind 8723 Coastline Ct. across from the Golf Clubhouse.

iii. Erosion is beginning to develop on the southeast portion of lake 30 adjacent to the tee boxes
for hole #18. Installation of curbing may be considered or the addition of a drain at the cart
path low point to minimize lake bank erosion in the area. It appears that golf course plugs
have previously been added on the west side of the cart path for the same issue.

Agenda Page #77



Inframark Monthly Management Report 8 

iv. There are three areas on the west bank of lake 30 that are being eroded along the #18 hole
that line up with fairway drains.  If there is not a maintenance plan to manage drains and
ensure they are clear before and after heavy rains events one should be encouraged to be
implemented to help minimize such erosion. If a drain maintenance program is in place,
consideration of larger drains or those with larger openings may need to be considered.
Taking action now, may prevent costly repairs from developing over time.

Agenda Page #78



Inframark Monthly Management Report 9 

b. Lake 32

i. Step erosion is occurring on the north bank. This area may bee a good location to test
littoral plantings, although the bank is very rocky and littorals may not survive. Drainage
from the adjacent structures should also be addressed which is likely contributing/causing
the erosion.

Agenda Page #79



Inframark Monthly Management Report 10 

ii. Erosion on the southwest bank has been previously pointed out by the Golf Couse. The
Board may wish to consider having curbing added to the cart path and a drain installed at
the low point that discharges directly into the lake below the low-water mark.

c. Lake 35 – Step erosion is occurring on the south bank that will need to be addressed in the
future. Drainage from the adjacent structures should be reviewed to see if they are contributing
to the erosion.

d. Lake 36

i. A bubbler from 9170 Shale Ct. and corresponding pipe drain  has been installed within the
lake maintenance easement. The Board may wish to add piping directly into the lake below
the low-water mark. If the drainage is allowed to remain as it is, significant erosion is likely
to develop in the future.

Agenda Page #80



Inframark Monthly Management Report 11 

ii. Step erosion was observed on the northwest bank of lake 36 that should be monitored.

iii. The Board may wish to consider having a drain added to the cart path at the low point
adjacent to 9184 Quartz Ln. as erosion is beginning to develop and it appears it is
developing from the cart path runoff.

Agenda Page #81



Inframark Monthly Management Report 12 

e. Lake 37 – Irrigation has been placed on the north bank below the high-water mark and should
likely be relocated to avoid erosion of the bank. Additionally, there is a large hole in the west
bank of the lake that should be filled before a larger issue develops.

f. Lake 38

i. Minimal erosion of the north and to a greater degree on northwestern bank. Erosion of the
northern bank should be monitored. Drainage from the homes on the northwestern
section should be reviewed.

ii. Erosion is developing between the homes of 9115 & 9119 Crystal Ct. The Board may wish
to consider having drainage added in the area to minimize further erosion from
developing.

iii. Erosion is beginning to form between the homes of 9127 & 9131 Crystal Ct. A bubbler was
found covered by grass that should be edged regularly to prevent grass overgrowth. The
Board may wish to consider having piping added to this bubbler and piped directly into the
lake below the low-water level to minimize erosion to the bank.

Agenda Page #82



Inframark Monthly Management Report 13 

iv. Documentation from CPH shows that there is supposed to be 20’ lake maintenance
easement around lake 38, however, it appears that there is not 20’ behind 9131 Crystal Ct.
It is unclear if this home obtained some variance to be closer to the lake or if there has
been significant loss of lake bank behind the home as there is not 20’ between the home
and the high-water mark.

v. Step erosion is occurring between 9135 & 9136 Crystal Ct. on the west bank of lake 38.
Drainage of the adjacent structures should be likely be reviewed to minimize further
erosion to the bank.

Agenda Page #83



Inframark Monthly Management Report 14 

vi. Step erosion is occurring between the homes of 9132 & 9136 Crystal Ct. on the west bank
of lake 38. Irrigation lines are exposed, and irrigation heads are below the high-water mark
and should likely be relocated. If left in their present location further erosion of the bank is
highly likely.

vii. Step erosion is occurring on the entire south bank of lake 38 and increases in severity as
you approach the southeast corner. Pool discharge issues are contributing to this erosion,
but drainage of the adjacent structures should be likely be reviewed as well. At least one
homeowner has had drainage installed to the lake bank, but it appears to be single wall
pipe that has a high chance it will fail and clog over time and it was terminated right at the
high-water mark and should have been installed, fully buried, past the low-water mark.
Irrigation heads have also been installed below the high-water mark and should likely be
repositioned to minimize further erosion.

Agenda Page #84



Inframark Monthly Management Report 15 

viii. The pool overflow for 9167 Shale Ct. has been rerouted to discharge directly into the lake
and as a result minimal erosion is occurring on the south bank of lake 38, but more
importantly due to the discharge directly occurring on the lake bank littorals in this area
will be impacted and likely prohibited from developing. The pool overflow should be
corrected and installed per County requirements. Additional comments noted under the
Illicit Discharge section of the report.

ix. The grass behind 9171 Slate Ct. is being impacted by the pool overflow drain and erosion is
occurring behind the home on the southern bank of lake 38. It is recommended that the
pipe extension be removed and the grass be addressed to minimize further erosion of the
bank. Additional comments noted under the Illicit Discharge section of the report.

Agenda Page #85



Inframark Monthly Management Report 16 

g. Lake 41 – Step erosion is occurring on the north bank of the lake and should likely be addressed
in the near future.

h. Lake 42 – Significant erosion areas are occurring on the west bank and between the structures
on the east bank. The areas should be addressed in the near future to prevent them from
becoming more severe. Additionally, drainage from the adjacent structures should be reviewed
to help minimize future erosion of the eastern lake bank.

i. Lake 44

i. There is a washout on the western bank adjacent to Quarry Dr. that should be addressed.

Agenda Page #86



Inframark Monthly Management Report 17 

ii. A washout is occurring on the eastern bank between the tee boxes of the #13 hole and the
heavy downpours appear to be overflowing attempts to control the water flow. A flume may
be considered in this area or a drain to be installed on the cart path with piping into the lake
below the low-water mark.

iii. Erosion is occurring on the southern bank of the lake adjacent to the cart path. The Board
may wish to consider having curbing installed on the cart path and a drain/multiple
drains/flume installed to channel the water and help prevent further erosion of the bank.

Agenda Page #87



Inframark Monthly Management Report 18 

j. Lake 45 – erosion is occurring on the northeastern bank. Drainage from the adjacent structures
should be reviewed and piping installed to direct the water into the lake below the low-water
mark.

k. Lake 47 – In addition to the erosion previously noted and discussed on the north and western
bank of lake 47 along hole #14 there is a minor erosion issue developing south of the #14 green
to the east of the cart path. The Board may wish to investigate having curbing and a drain
installed to prevent further erosion of the bank.

l. Lake 50 – Erosion is developing on the northeast and northwest banks that should be
monitored and addressed in the near future. It appears that land loss may have occurred based
off of the current position of an irrigation head on the northeast end of the lake.

Agenda Page #88



Inframark Monthly Management Report 19 

m. Lake 58 – A large washout has developed between 9230 & 9236 Gypsum Way. The lake bank
should be repaired quickly before the issues gets more severe. Drainage from the adjacent
structures should likely be piped directly into the lake below the low-water mark to prevent
further erosion.

n. Lake 61 – There is a large washout between the homes of 9020 & 9024 Graphite Circle. It is
recommended that the downspouts of these homes be connected to drainage that is ran
directly into the lake below the low water mark to eliminate the erosion issue.

3. Lake Bank Plantings
No issues observed.

4. Preserve Management
a. Conservation Area #1: Brazilian pepper was observed on the berm boundary of

conservation #1 adjacent to lake 2 of Heritage Bay.

Agenda Page #89



Inframark Monthly Management Report 20 

b. Conservation Area #2: Vegetation should be kept off of the fence to prevent damage.

c. Conservation Area #3:
i. Caesar’s weed was observed on the northwestern boundary along the berm that should be

treated.

ii. Air potato was observed in the top of a large firebush plant that is exceeding the
western boundary along the berm that should be treated.

Agenda Page #90



Inframark Monthly Management Report 21 

iii. A castor bean plant was found behind 9528/9532 Ironstone Terrace among other
Caesar’s weed plants that should be treated.

iv. An earleaf acacia tree was found south of 9532 Ironstone Terrace on the western
boundary that should be treated.

5. Storm Drainage System
a. Boundary Berms: No issues observed.

b. Control Structures:

i. W1W4: The control structure was not flowing. The weeds and smaller palms overtaking

the structure should be sprayed out. Edging should be performed around the catch basins
to prevent grass overgrowth.

ii. W1L30: The control structure was not flowing. The torpedo grass and all weeds should be

sprayed out. There was at least one section of concrete dislodged that should likely be
repaired.

Agenda Page #91



Inframark Monthly Management Report 22 

iii. L32L30: The control structure was not flowing. Board may wish to install rip rap around the

wing walls of the structure to minimize debris entering the structure.

iv. L30COCO2 & L30COCO3: Control Structure L30COCO3 was not flowing, but the weed

growth was noted and reported to the lake vendor for Heritage Bay CDD.  Control Structure
L30COCO2 was not flowing,

Agenda Page #92



Inframark Monthly Management Report 23 

v. L56L30: The control structure was not flowing.

vi. L62L30: The control structure was not flowing.

vii. L63L30-1 & L63L30-2: Control Structures L63L30-1 & L63L30-2 were not flowing.

c. Drains: No issues observed.

d. Roadway Catch Basins: No issues observed on the structures inspected.

Agenda Page #93



Inframark Monthly Management Report 24 

e. Catch Basins: No issues observed.

f. Interconnects/Drain Pipes:

i. 30/63: The lake 30 side of the interconnect is about 95% clogged and almost not visible.

MRI marked this structure out on their inspection report, however, CPH has this lake listed
as having two 36” pipes in addition to the two control structures. The line should be
cleaned out for proper flow to be established.

ii. 35/36: The lake 35 side of the interconnect is covered by a piece of plywood that is

blocking proper flow of the structure. The lake 36 side of the interconnect has debris in it
that should be cleared to restore proper flow.

iii. 38: The roadway drain discharge pipe appears not to be level presently. It is possible the

pipe was set initially at an angle. The pipe should be monitored to see if further movement
is visible.

Agenda Page #94



Inframark Monthly Management Report 25 

iv. 62
1. The lake 62 side of the interconnect with lake 63A has debris in it that should likely be

cleared so proper flow is restored.

2. A piece of wood was found in a junction box behind 9070 Limestone Ln. that should be
removed to prevent a possible blockage.

g. Illicit Discharges:
i. 9392 Copper Rock Ct.: A pool was observed being built behind the home. Sand had

pushed the silt fence down slightly in one section, but it did not appear that any sand was
escaping the silt fencing area. No further action was taken.

Agenda Page #95



Inframark Monthly Management Report 26 

ii. 9024 Graphite Cir.: The pool drain overflow on this home has been extended with a

rubber gasket and additional piping. The drain should be adjusted to meet County
requirements before damage to the lake bank occurs.

iii. 9028 Graphite Cir.: The pool drain overflow on this home has been extended and it

appears it may be discharging high levels of chlorine in the lake as the lake bank is being
impacted. As this home is a bit further from the lake bank it is not clear if this would be a
violation of County requirements.

iv. 9167 Shale Ct.: The pool overflow on this home has been rerouted to directly discharge

into the lake. This is likely not appropriate for County requirements and should be
corrected. Additional comments noted under the Lake Bank Erosion section of the report.

Agenda Page #96



Inframark Monthly Management Report 27 

v. 9171 Shale Ct.: The pool drain overflow on this home has been extended with a rubber

gasket and additional piping that may not be appropriate for County requirements. The
overflow is likely sending high amounts of chlorine into the lake when it occurs due to its
proximity to the high-water mark. Additional comments noted under the Lake Bank
Erosion section of the report.

vi. 9298 Quarry Dr.: It appears a pool overflow drain has been rerouted from the home to

the northwestern swale catch basin which flows directly to lakes 57 & 58. The discharge
into the catch basin should be removed.

h. Lake Drainage Pipes: See comments under the lake bank erosion section of the report.

6. Parcels Owned
No issues observed.

7. Fish/Wildlife Observations:
 Bass  Bream  Catfish  Gambusia 

Agenda Page #97



Inframark Monthly Management Report 28 

 Egrets  Herons  Coots  Gallinules 
Anhinga  Cormorant   Osprey  Ibis 
 Wood stork  Otter  Alligators  Snakes 
 Turtles  Other:  Deer 

8. Residential Complaints/Concerns:
a. Lake bank weeds – reported to CES.

b. Preserve Clippings left behind Marble Stone Dr. on the eastern berm of conservation area
#3 – Informed QCA that this was an association issue and not work that was performed by
CES.

c. Drainage concern between 9301 & 9297 Quarry Dr. – investigated during a rain event and
found the system to be flowing as intended.

9. Non-CDD Issues:

Agenda Page #98



Inframark Monthly Management Report 29 

a. Irrigation box covers should be replaced when work is not actively being performed to avoid
safety issues from developing.

b. After a heavy afternoon rain, water could be heard flowing next to the restrooms along
conservation area #2, but no drain was visible. The drain was uncovered and the water was able
to drain more quickly in the area.

c. A Brazilian pepper tree was observed south of control structure W1L30 located along the
northern boundary of the District east of hole #10. The tree should be removed to prevent
further seed source from spreading and growing within the District.

Agenda Page #99



Inframark Monthly Management Report 30 

d. A Brazilian pepper tree was observed coming out of the lift station area west of lake 50.  The
tree should be removed to prevent further seed source from spreading and growing within the
District.

e. Brazilian pepper trees were noted west of the white Heritage Bay/Quarry CDD boundary
marker installed by CPH on the south bank of lake 30 adjacent to the Quarry Dr. entrance. The
trees should be removed to prevent further seed source from spreading and growing within the
District.

f. Various Brazilian pepper trees were noted on the northeast bridge quadrant at the intersection
of Weathered Stone Dr./Quarry Dr. The tree should be removed to prevent further seed source
from spreading and growing within the District.

Agenda Page #100



Inframark Monthly Management Report 31 

g. A Brazilian pepper tree was noted on the southeast bridge quadrant north of 8802 Spinner
Cover Ln. The tree should be removed to prevent further seed source from spreading and
growing within the District.

h. A Brazilian pepper tree was observed in the hedge north east of the cart path adjacent to the
#18 tee. The tree should be removed to prevent further seed source from spreading and
growing within the District.

Agenda Page #101



Inframark Monthly Management Report 32 

i. There is a Brazilian pepper tree east of the cart path as you are approaching the #17 tee boxes
and an ear leaf acacia tree south of 9193 Quartz Ln. just north of the cart path in the
landscaping that should be removed to prevent further seed source within the District.

j. There is a large earleaf acacia tree that should likely be removed that is on golf course property
on the north bank of lake 35 as it is listed as a category 1 invasive. Additionally, there are
smaller Brazilian pepper trees on the northwest bank of this lake that should also be removed
to prevent further seed source within the District.

k. A Brazilian pepper tree was observed south of lake 47 on the approach to the #15 green. The
tree should be removed to prevent further seed source from spreading and growing within the
District.

Agenda Page #102



Inframark Monthly Management Report 33 

l. There is a large washout between the homes of 9154 & 9150 Limestone Ln. This area should be
repaired promptly before it gets more severe. Drainage off of the adjacent structures should
likely be piped directly into the lake below the high-water mark to prevent further erosion.

Agenda Page #103



Seventh Order of Business 

Agenda Page #104



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7A 

Agenda Page #105



THE QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT DISTRICT COUNSEL REPORT 

September 20, 2021 MEETING 

1. Confer with Faircloth and Omland regarding completion of CDD 101 Notebook.  The
goal is to have a draft of the notebook for the October meeting.

2. Confer with Omland regarding use of FEMA funds.  Bond counsel, who needs to provide
an opinion approving any project to be constructed with FEMA funds, preliminarily
approved the project identified by the District Engineer and indicated that the funds
should be spent in two to three years.  I have followed up with bond counsel to explain
why five years may be a more realistic timeframe and am waiting on a response on
whether the timeframe can be extended.  Hope to have a response by the September 20
meeting.

3. Worked with counsel for the QCA regarding conveyance documents for the land swap;
prepared a resolution approving same.

4. Conferred with Faircloth regarding agreement with Glase Golf, Inc. for pilot project and
prepared agreements.

Agenda Page #106



From: Wes Haber <WesH@hgslaw.com>  
Sent: Friday, August 27, 2021 8:52 AM 
To: Stanley Omland <somland@quarrycdd.org> 
Cc: Faircloth, Justin <justin.faircloth@inframark.com> 
Subject: RE: Quarry CDD - FEMA Reimbursement 
 
You’re welcome.   
 
Just noticed that I forgot to copy Justin, so I’ve looped him in.  Justin – see below regarding fund to 
deposit FEMA funds. 
 
Wesley Haber 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.  
  
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, FL  32301 
  
850.425.2345 | hgslaw.com | Attorney Bio  
 
From: Stanley Omland <somland@quarrycdd.org>  
Sent: Friday, August 27, 2021 8:41 AM 
To: Wes Haber <WesH@hgslaw.com> 
Subject: Re: Quarry CDD - FEMA Reimbursement 
 
 Notice: External  

Thanks Wes.   

Stan Omland  
973-699-7600 
 
On Aug 27, 2021, at 8:39 AM, Wes Haber <WesH@hgslaw.com> wrote: 

Good morning Stan.  That’s great news.  I have been out of the office, but heard from Misty earlier this 
week (her e-mail is attached).  The substance of her e-mail is that the project should be fine as long as 
“all of the expenditures are capital (none are for ongoing maintenance) and it’s all District property (i.e., 
none of the Quarry Golf Club lakes).”  With respect to timing she noted that “Tax Counsel’s preference 
would be that they could spend them in 2 years or less, but could get comfortable with up to 3 if there’s 
a good reason that it’s going to take that long.” 
  
With respect to the imminent receipt of the funds, the existing indenture provides that the funds should 
be deposited into the “Restricted Subaccount of the 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account.”  The 
funds can remain there for up to six months to give the District the opportunity to approve a project to 
be paid for form the funds and obtain a formal opinion from bond counsel.  If the District does not do 
this within the six month period, the funds will automatically be used to redeem bonds.  (See Section 
404(b) on the attached document for details on the deposit and use of the funds.) 
  
I’ve copied Justin on this e-mail so his office will make sure that the funds are deposited in the Restricted 
Subaccount of the 2020 Acquisition and Construction Account. 
  

Agenda Page #107

https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.hgslaw.com/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!FX242HLWwFZzRQ4TIizrlhkmBMeBZpYR3YUnhzQVLeK-SpFC1uRLdP9zgKP-M1sPpdTsIzSE$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/hgslaw.com/attorney/wesley-s-haber/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!FX242HLWwFZzRQ4TIizrlhkmBMeBZpYR3YUnhzQVLeK-SpFC1uRLdP9zgKP-M1sPpQxdik3D$
mailto:somland@quarrycdd.org
mailto:WesH@hgslaw.com
mailto:WesH@hgslaw.com


Please let me know if you have any questions or would like to discuss in more detail. 
  
Thanks.   
     
Wesley Haber 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.  
  
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, FL  32301 
  
850.425.2345 | hgslaw.com | Attorney Bio  
   
From: Stanley Omland <somland@quarrycdd.org>  
Sent: Friday, August 27, 2021 7:50 AM 
To: Wes Haber <WesH@hgslaw.com> 
Subject: Re: Quarry CDD - FEMA Reimbursement 
  
 Notice: External  

Good morning Wes.  FEMA $3.7mm should be received imminently, with the balance in the next month 
or so.     
  
Can we push Misty for her response? 

Stan Omland  
973-699-7600 
 
On Aug 23, 2021, at 12:42 PM, Wes Haber <WesH@hgslaw.com> wrote: 

Hi Stan.  Below is my e-mail to bond counsel.  I will let you know as soon as I receive an answer.  Thanks.   
  
Wesley Haber 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.  
  
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, FL  32301 
  
850.425.2345 | hgslaw.com | Attorney Bio  
   
From: Wes Haber  
Sent: Friday, August 20, 2021 10:37 AM 
To: Misty W. Taylor (mtaylor@bmolaw.com) <mtaylor@bmolaw.com> 
Subject: Quarry CDD - FEMA Reimbursement 
  
Hi Misty, 
  
Hope you’re doing well.  You may recall when we worked on the 2020 refunding for the Quarry CDD, the 
indenture included language related to the potential for the District receiving funds from FEMA.  I’ve 
attached some of the relevant provisions to this e-mail.  The District has recently been informed that 

Agenda Page #108

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/protect-us.mimecast.com/s/e3N9Cxkyn8F70z3svJp3k/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!FX242HLWwFZzRQ4TIizrlhkmBMeBZpYR3YUnhzQVLeK-SpFC1uRLdP9zgKP-M1sPpVEraBSW$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/protect-us.mimecast.com/s/5sPLCyPzo7i8WpRHQTAzz/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!FX242HLWwFZzRQ4TIizrlhkmBMeBZpYR3YUnhzQVLeK-SpFC1uRLdP9zgKP-M1sPpYd9xWJo$
mailto:somland@quarrycdd.org
mailto:WesH@hgslaw.com
mailto:WesH@hgslaw.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/protect-us.mimecast.com/s/lXP2CzpAvQUkB7AFKLgw5/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!FX242HLWwFZzRQ4TIizrlhkmBMeBZpYR3YUnhzQVLeK-SpFC1uRLdP9zgKP-M1sPpZuNKfVW$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/protect-us.mimecast.com/s/AyBBCADrNWtwo8zFQWc6p/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!FX242HLWwFZzRQ4TIizrlhkmBMeBZpYR3YUnhzQVLeK-SpFC1uRLdP9zgKP-M1sPpaypVc1Z$
mailto:mtaylor@bmolaw.com
mailto:mtaylor@bmolaw.com


FEMA funds have been “committed,” which, as I understand it, means there is a very high likelihood that 
they will be paid to the District.   
  
The attached indenture provisions provide for two options for FEMA funds: 1) redeem outstanding 
bonds; or 2) use them for a new project.  Before the funds can be used for a new project, the District 
must obtain an opinion of Bond Counsel that the implementation of the project “will not adversely 
affect the tax-exempt status of the 2020 Bonds . . . .”   
  
The Board is still evaluating what it would like to do with any FEMA funds and has asked me whether the 
project described in the attached report from the District Engineer would qualify to be paid for from the 
FEMA funds.  To the extent the project does qualify, the Board is also interested in knowing what the 
restrictions are in how quickly the money needs to be spent.  Specifically, because of the rise and fall of 
water in the ponds, there is a concern that the entire project would not be able to be completed all at 
once.  Therefore the Board would like to know if the project can be completed over a period of years 
and, if so, how many years.  To the extent there are other restrictions on the manner in which the 
District can use the funds for the project, the Board would be interested in knowing those as well. 
  
Please let me know if you have any questions regarding the foregoing or the attached.  It is my 
understanding that the District may receive the FEMA funds as soon next week, and the Board is hoping 
to be able to make a decision on how the funds are used at its September meeting. 
  
Thanks!     
  
Wesley Haber 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.  
  
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, FL  32301 
  
850.425.2345 | hgslaw.com | Attorney Bio  
  
  

Agenda Page #109

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/protect-us.mimecast.com/s/lXP2CzpAvQUkB7AFKLgw5/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!FX242HLWwFZzRQ4TIizrlhkmBMeBZpYR3YUnhzQVLeK-SpFC1uRLdP9zgKP-M1sPpZuNKfVW$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/protect-us.mimecast.com/s/AyBBCADrNWtwo8zFQWc6p/__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!FX242HLWwFZzRQ4TIizrlhkmBMeBZpYR3YUnhzQVLeK-SpFC1uRLdP9zgKP-M1sPpaypVc1Z$


7B 

Agenda Page #110



RESOLUTION 2021-10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE QUARRY 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APRROVING A LAND SWAP WITH 

THE QUARRY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION; AUTHORIZING DISTRICT STAFF 

AND THE CHAIRMAN TO REVIEW, REVISE, AND EXECUTE TO EFFECTUATE 

SUCH LAND SWAP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Quarry Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit of special-

purpose government duly organized and existing under the provisions of the Uniform Community 

Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Act”), for the purpose of, 

among other things, financing and managing the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, maintenance and 

operation of certain infrastructure improvements within and without the boundaries of the district; and 

WHEREAS, the District has the authority pursuant to Section 190.012, Florida Statutes, to acquire 

real property and improvements for, among other things, the purposes of operation and maintaining 

systems, facilities and basic infrastructures within the District; and  

WHEREAS, the District has the authority pursuant to Section 190.011(7)(a), Florida Statutes, to 

acquire and/or dispose of any real property and dedications or platted reservations for purposes authorized 

by the Act, including the authorizing provided in Section 190.012, Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, Quarry Community Association, a Florida corporation not-for-profit (“Association”), 

desires to construct certain recreation facilities on the District-owned property more particularly described 

on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “District Property”); and 

WHEREAS, to facilitate the construction of the Association’s recreation facilities, the Association has 

requested that the District swap the District Property for the Association-owned property more particularly 

described on Exhibit B (the “Association Property”); and 

WHEREAS, in addition to other benefits, the District accepting the Association Property will enhance 

the District’s ability to fulfil its obligation to maintain the stormwater management facilities throughout the 

community and, as a result, is willing to swap the District Property for the Association Property (the “Land 

Swap”); and 

WHEREAS, attached hereto as Composite Exhibit C are forms of a Land Swap Agreement and Lake 

Maintenance and Surface Water Drainage Easement Agreement (collectively the “Conveyance 

Documents”), which the District desires to approve in substantial form and authorize District staff and the 

Chairman to review, revise, and execute, together with other documents necessary to effectuate the Land 

Swap. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

THE QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

1. Recitals.  The recitals stated above are true and correct and by this reference are

incorporated herein and form a material part of this Resolution. 

2. Approval of the Conveyance Documents.  The Conveyance Documents are hereby approved

in substantial form and authority is given to District staff and the Chairman to review, revise, and execute 

the Conveyance Documents. 

Agenda Page #111



  

3. Authorization of District Representatives.  In addition to the approvals set forth in 

paragraph two, the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, the Secretary and any Assistant Secretaries (together with 

Chairman, Vice Chairman and Secretary, the “District Officers”) and the District Manager, District Counsel 

and the District Engineer (collectively with District Officers, the “District Representatives”) are hereby 

authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or desirable in connection with the Land Swap, and all 

transactions in connection therewith.   The District Representatives are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute all necessary or desirable certificates, documents, papers, and agreements necessary to the 

undertaking and fulfillment of all transactions contemplated by this Resolution.    

4. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be held 

to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this Resolution shall continue to be in full force 

and effect. 

5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 20th day of September 2021. 

 

ATTEST:       QUARRY COMMUNITY  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

              

Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Exhibit A  Description of District Property 

Exhibit B   Description of Association Property 

Composite Exhibit C  Conveyance Documents 

 

 

  

Agenda Page #112



  

EXHIBIT A 

DISTRICT PROPERTY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #113



  

EXHIBIT B 

ASSOCIATION PROPERTY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #114



  

EXHIBIT C 

CONVEYNACE DOCUMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #115



  

LAND SWAP AGREEMENT 

 

This Land Swap Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this          day 
of 2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between: 

  
QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special 
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the 
“District”), whose mailing address is 210 N. University Drive, Suite 702, Coral 
Springs, Florida 33071 (the  District”); and 

QUARRY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, a Florida corporation 
not for profit (the “Association”), whose mailing address is 8975 
Kayak Drive, Naples, Florida 34120. 

 
RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the District is the owner of that certain parcel of real property located in 
Collier County, Florida, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto (the “District 
Property”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Association is the owner of those certain parcels of real property located 

in Collier County, Florida, more particularly described in Exhibit “B” attached   hereto (the 
“Association Property”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Association owns a parcel of real property adjacent to the District 

Property upon which there exist certain recreational amenities and improvements for use by 
members of the community; 

 
WHEREAS, the Association intends to expand the existing recreational facilities and 

construct additional improvements for the community; however, in order to facilitate such 
expansion and construction of additional improvements in accordance with the Association’s 
plans, a portion of the additional improvements will need to be constructed upon the District 
Property; 

 
WHEREAS, the Association desires to swap the Association Property for the District 

Property,  and the Association has agreed to incur all costs in connection with the swap of the 
District Property and Association Property; 

 
WHEREAS, the District has agreed to swap the District Property for the Association 

Property, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District and the Association agree that this Agreement shall be binding 
upon their respective heirs, executors, receivers, trustees, successors and assigns. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and for 

Ten and no/100ths ($10.00) Dollars from the District to the Association and other good and 
valuable consideration between the parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by the parties, and subject to the terms and conditions hereof, and for Ten and 

 
no/100ths ($10.00) Dollars from the Association to the District and other good and valuable 

Agenda Page #116



  

consideration between the parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged 
by the parties, and subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the parties agree as follows: 

 

Section 1.     INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and 
correct and by this reference are incorporated by reference as a material part of this Agreement. 

Section 2. EXCHANGE OF PROPERTY. 

(a) The District shall convey good and marketable title of the District Property 
to the Association, and the Association shall convey good and marketable title of the Association 
Property to the District. The Association shall coordinate with the District’s attorney the process 
for the exchange of deeds. The Association shall provide the District with a title insurance 
commitment acceptable to the District’s attorney at least ten (10) days prior to Closing showing 
that title to the Association Property is in the name of the Association and that the Association’s 
title to the Association’s Property is good and marketable, free of all liens and encumbrances. 

 

(b) The Closing of this transaction shall occur on or before thirty (30) days 
following the Effective Date. 

 
(c) At Closing, the District shall deliver to the Association an executed Special 

Warranty Deed in recordable form for the District Property, and the Association shall deliver 
to  the District an executed Special Warranty Deed for the Association Property in recordable form, 
together with the following: (i) a marked-up and signed title insurance commitment consistent with 
(a) above; (ii) an affidavit executed by the property owner attesting to the absence of any liens, 
parties-in-possession, or other claims; (iii) a FIRPTA affidavit; (iv) a certificate of good standing 
and resolution authorizing the conveyance contemplated herein; (v) a closing statement; and (vi) 
such other documents as may be customarily executed by the parties in a real estate transaction 
in the State of Florida. 

 
(d) The District and the Association each acknowledge that it is acquiring the 

District Property or the Association Property, as applicable, in its “AS IS, WHERE IS” condition, 
without representation or warranty on the part of the other party.   

 
(e) For purposes of the exchange to be effected under this Agreement, the 

parties agree that the Association Property is equal to or greater than the value of the District 
Property.   

 
(f)  By approval and execution of this Agreement, the District authorizes and 

ratifies the preparation and execution by the proper official(s) of the District of all documents 
necessary to effectuate the conveyances contemplated by this Agreement. 

 
Section 3.      COSTS OF EXCHANGE OF THE ASSOCIATION PROPERTY AND 

THE DISTRICT PROPERTY. Any and all costs associated with the exchange of the Association 
Property and the District Property, including, but not limited to, the District’s and Association’s 
reasonable attorney’s fees and engineering fees, any documentary stamp taxes due on the 
exchange, District’s title insurance premium, and recording fees, will be paid by the  

Section 4. TAXES. All ad valorem taxes for the Association Property and District 
Property, if any, for the year of Closing shall be paid by the Association. Such taxes shall be paid 
by the Association to the Collier County Tax Collector in the manner provided by law. 

Agenda Page #117



  

 
Section 5.       SUCCESSORS. The rights and obligations created by this Agreement shall 

be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Association and the District, and their respective 
heirs, executors, receivers, trustees, successors and assigns. 

 
Section 6.      CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS. Whenever used the singular number shall 

include the plural, the plural the singular; the use of any gender shall include all genders, as the 
context requires; and the disjunctive shall be construed as the conjunctive, the conjunctive as the 
disjunctive, as the context requires. 

 
Section 7.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire 

understanding between the District and the Association, and each agrees that no representation 
was made by or on behalf of the other that is not contained in this Agreement and that in entering 
into this Agreement neither party relied upon any representation not herein contained. 

 
Section 8. CAPTIONS. The captions for each section of this Agreement are for 

convenience and reference only and in no way define, describe, extend, or limit the scope of intent 
of this Agreement, or the intent of any provision hereof. 

 
Section 9.     SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement, the deletion of which 

would not adversely affect the receipt of any material benefit by any party hereunder or 
substantially increase the burden of any party hereto, shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable 
to any extent, the same shall not affect in any respect whatsoever the validity or enforceability of 
the remainder of this Agreement. 

 
Section 10.   EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS. Each party covenants and agrees that it 

will at any time and from time to time do such acts and execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause 
to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such documents reasonably requested by the parties 
necessary to carry out fully and effectuate the transaction herein contemplated and to convey good 
and marketable title for all conveyances subject to this Agreement. 

 
Section 11. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such 

counterparts together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 
Section 12. AUTHORITY. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized 

by the appropriate body or official of all parties hereto, each party has complied with all the 
requirements of law, and each party has full power and authority to comply with the terms  and 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
Section 13. INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS. All exhibits attached to this Agreement 

are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 14. AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS. This Agreement may not be  amended, 

modified, altered, or changed in any respect whatsoever except by a further agreement in writing 
duly executed by the parties hereto. No failure by the District or the Association to insist upon 
the strict performance of any covenant, duty, agreement, or condition of this Agreement or to 
exercise any right or remedy upon a breach thereof shall constitute a waiver of any such breach 

Agenda Page #118



  

or of such or any other covenant, agreement, term, or condition. Either party hereto, by notice, 
may but shall be under no obligation to, waive any of its rights or any conditions to its obligations 
hereunder. No waiver shall affect or alter this Agreement, but each and every covenant, 
agreement, term, and condition of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect with 
respect to any other then-existing or subsequent breach thereof. 

 
Section 15. APPLICABLE LAW; VENUE. This Agreement is made and shall be 

construed under the laws of the State of Florida, without regard to principles of conflicts of law, 
and venue for purposes of any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall be Collier County, 
Florida. 

 
Section 16. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the 

benefit of the formal parties herein and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason 
hereof, to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party hereto. Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the parties hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or 
any provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants and 
conditions herein contained shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties 
hereto and their respective representatives, successors and assigns. 

 
Section 17. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated 

fully between the parties in an arm’s length transaction. The parties participated fully in the 
preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel. In the case of a 
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the parties are deemed 
to have drafted, chosen and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted 
or construed against any party. 

 
Section 18. FURTHER ASSURANCES. At any and all times, the Association and the 

District shall, so far as either may be authorized by law, make, do, execute, acknowledge and 
deliver, all and every other further acts, deeds, conveyances, assignments, transfers and assurances 
as may be necessary or desirable, as determined by the District or the Association, for the better 
assuring, conveying, granting, assigning and confirming, as applicable, of any and all rights or 
interest in the District Property and the Association Property. 

 
 

 
 

[signatures on following page] 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Agenda Page #119



  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date stated 

above. 
 

Attest: 
QUARRY COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 

By:    
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chair 

 

   day of , 2021 
 
 
 
 

Witnesses:      QUARRY COMMUNITY 
        ASSOCIATION, INC.,  
    a Florida not for profit corporation 

 
 
 
____________________________   By: _______________________ 
____________________________   Print: ________________________ 
Print Name      Title:_________________________ 
 
 
____________________________   ______ day of _________________, 2021 
____________________________ 
Print Name 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #120



 

 

Exhibit “A” 

 
Legal Description 

District Property to be conveyed to Association 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page #121



 

 

Exhibit “B” 

 
Legal Description 

Association Property to be conveyed to District 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #122



 

 

Prepared by and return to: 

Molly A. Maggiano, Esq. 
Goede Adamczyk DeBoest & Cross, PLLC 
6609 Willow Park Drive, Second Floor 
Naples, Florida 34109 
 
 
 

LAKE MAINTENANCE AND SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE  
EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made effective the ___ day of ________________, 2021, by and between 
the QUARRY COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION. INC., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, herein referred 
to as the "Association", and the QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, herein referred to as the 
"District". 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, Association is the owner of that certain parcel of real property, including all 
improvements and facilities situated thereon, located Collier County, Florida, more particularly described 
in Exhibit "A" attached hereto (the "Association Property"); 
 

WHEREAS, the District is the owner of those certain parcels of real property located in Collier 
County, Florida, more particularly described in Exhibits "B" and "C" attached hereto (collectively, the 
"District Property");  
 

WHEREAS, the real property, and improvements located thereon, comprising the District Property 
is part of the surface water management system for the community, for which the District is responsible for 
the operation, maintenance and repair, including compliance with applicable permits issued by the South 
Florida Water Management District; 
 

WHEREAS, the Association requires an easement from the District for purposes of the drainage of 
surface water from the Association Property over, across and through that portion of the District Property 
described in Exhibit "C", and the District is willing to grant the Association an easement to facilitate such 
drainage in accordance with the terms hereof; and  

 
WHEREAS, the District requires an easement over the Association Property for purposes of 

maintaining that portion of the District Property described in Exhibit "B", and the Association is willing to 
grant the District an easement for such purposes in accordance with the terms hereof. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and in the further 
consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable considerations, each to the 
other in hand paid, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby confirmed by the parties 
to this Agreement. 
 

2. Grant of Easement to the Association.  The District hereby grants to Association, its 
successors and assigns, a perpetual non-exclusive easement on, over and across that portion of the District 
Property described on Exhibit "C" for drainage purposes (the " Drainage Easement"). The District hereby 
reserves the non-exclusive use and enjoyment of the Drainage Easement area, and all ownership rights 
therein.  The Association acknowledges and agrees that Association's use of the Drainage Easement shall 

Agenda Page #123



 

 

at all times be in accordance with applicable permits issued by the South Florida Water Management 
District and any other rules, regulations, ordinances or orders of any governmental agency having 
jurisdiction over the District Property and/or the surface water management system. 
 

3. Grant of Easement to the District.   The Association grants to the District, and its successors 
and assigns,  a non-exclusive easement on, over and across that portion of the Association property as 
described in Exhibit "A-1" for purposes of ingress and egress in connection with the District's operation, 
maintenance and repair of the District Property (the "Lake Maintenance Easement").  The Association 
hereby reserves the non-exclusive use and enjoyment of the Lake Maintenance Easement area, and all rights 
therein, for all purposes not inconsistent with the Lake Maintenance Easement.  The District shall keep the 
Association Property free from liens arising in any manner out of the activities of the District and shall 
promptly discharge and liens that are asserted, and shall indemnify and defend the Association from any 
loss, claim or liability to the Association arising in any manner out of the District's use of the Lake 
Maintenance Easement.  The District assumes all risk arising out of its use of the Lake Maintenance 
Easement and the Association shall have no liability to the District or others for any condition existing 
thereon.  In the event of any damage to the Association Property sustained as a result of the District's use 
of the Lake Maintenance Easement, the District shall promptly repair any such damage and restore the 
affected portion of the Association Property to the condition the property existed prior to such damage.  
 

4. Sovereign Immunity.  Nothing contained herein shall cause or be construed as a waiver of 
the District's sovereign immunity or limitations on liability granted pursuant to Section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, or other law, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the 
purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity 
or by operation of law.   

 
5. Governing Law.  The laws of the State of Florida shall govern the validity, enforcement 

and interpretation of this Easement Agreement and the parties agree that venue shall lie in Collier County, 
Florida.  In the case 
 
 IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this Lake Maintenance and Surface Water 
Drainage Easement Agreement on the date first written above. 
 
 
 

 

[signatures on following pages]  

Agenda Page #124



 

 

       
       THE ASSOCIATION: 
 
Witnesses: THE QUARRY COMMUNITY 

ASSOCIATION 
______________________________   a Florida Not For Profit Corporation 
Print Name:____________________ 
 
______________________________   By:____________________________ 
Print Name:      Name:_________________________ 

Title: __________________________ 
 
Date:___________________________ 

 
 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF COLLIER 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [_] 
physical presence or [_] online notarization this ____ day of _____________, 2021, by Cheryl Ollila, as 
President of the Quarry Community Association, a Florida Not For Profit Corporation, on behalf of the 
Association.  She is [_] personally known to me or [_] has produced ______________________ as 
identification. 

 
 

       
Notary Public 
       
(Printed Name of Notary) 
My Commission Expires:    

 

 

Agenda Page #125



 

 

DISTRICT: 
 
Witnesses: QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
______________________________   a Florida Community Development District 
Print Name:____________________ 
 
______________________________   By:____________________________ 
Print Name:      Name:_________________________ 

Title: __________________________ 
 
Date:___________________________ 

 
 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF COLLIER 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [_] 
physical presence or [_] online notarization this ____ day of ____________, 2021, by Stanley T. Omland, 
as Chairman of the Quarry Community Development District, a Florida community development district, 
on behalf of the district.  He is [_] personally known to me or [_] has produced ______________________ 
as identification. 

 
 

       
Notary Public 
       
(Printed Name of Notary) 
My Commission Expires:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Page #126



Tenth Order of Business

Agenda Page #127



10Ai

Agenda Page #128



THE QUARRY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
CHAIRMAN’S ACTIVITY REPORT SINCE LAST MEETING 

FOR SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 MEETING 

1. FEMA and now FDEM Update:
a. Ongoing email communications with FEMA and Tony Ettore, Esq.

our specialized attorney.
b. “Large Project Notification”, was the last FEMA review before

obligation of funds, and is now complete.  FEMA eligible funds have
been obligated and transferred to Florida Department of Emergency
Management (FDEM)

c. Our project costs, eligible for reimbursement is $4,828,473.57.  FEMA
reimburses 90%, FDEM reimburses 5%, which totals 95%
reimbursement.  This means that we should/will receive payments
totaling $4,587,049.89.  Given FDEM’s review, we should receive this
amount +/- in three or four payments in the coming months, with the
first payment within 4 weeks totaling $1,733,050.58.  The second
payment will be in the amount of $1,803,125.45 and the last
payment(s) should complete the reimbursement.  While these
payments are very specific, there may be some adjustments from
these values as FDEM continues their review, but not significant.

d. We need to decide on what to do with these funds, i.e. use 2 million
for shoreline projects outlined in CPH’s May programming report and
2.5 million to repay the bond or some other combination.

e. We also have limited time to use these reimbursement funds due to
our refinanced bond covenants.  We await Wes’ update on timing.

f. This will necessitate discussion at our September meeting as to
timing and size of projects as well as impediments to overcome.

2. Resident issues:
a. None relayed to Chair this month

3. Review and process invoices through AVID
4. Discussions with ALopez of CPH re:  proposals for shoreline projects
5. Discussions with JFaircloth of Inframark re agenda items.
6. Ongoing discussions with QCA on swap of land necessary to implement

their Beach Club Master Plan.

Stanley T. Omland, PE, PP, CME, LEED AP 

09.10.21 

Agenda Page #129


	The Quarry 9.20.21 Agenda Package
	Agenda 9.20.21
	Fifth Order of Business
	5A
	Engineer's Report
	5B
	CPH Pilot Project Recommendation Sites
	5C
	CPH Pilot Project Proposal
	5D
	Lake Bank Erosion Project
	Sixth Order of Business
	6A
	Minutes of Meeting, 8.16.21
	6B
	Financial Report, August 2021
	6Cii
	Variance Easememt Report
	6Ciia
	9051 Breakwater Drive
	6Ciib
	9075 Graphite Circle
	6D
	Field Management Report
	Seventh Order of Business
	7A
	Attorney's Report
	7B
	Resolution 2021-10
	Tenth Order of Business
	10Ai
	Chairman's Report



